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Ames National
Corporation is a growth
oriented financial services
holding company
providing leadership,
counsel and support o its
offiliates with uniform
policies and procedures. It
shall maintain a sfrong
copital base and achieve

superior performance.

To OurR SHAREHOLDERS

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

We are pleased to
report that in 2004
several new records
were established. Net
income exceeded
$12,000,000 for the
first time and total
assets, total loans and
total
reached record numbers. Company stock
was listed on the NASDAQ SmallCap
Market, with the price ending the year 38%
higher than posted at the end 2003.

Daniel L. Krieger

capital  all

Each of our banks contributed to these
record numbers. Their employees and
boards of directors are committed to
delivering the best of community banking
to their customers in each of our twelve
banking locations in central Iowa.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Net income increased 6.6% to a record
$12,390,000 or $3.95 per share compared
to $11,625,000 or $3.71 per share earned in
2003. The stronger 2004 earnings were the
result of an increase in total interest income
and the fact that non-interest expense
remained nearly constant compared to last
year. The higher net income in 2004 was
achieved despite the fact that gains from
security transactions and loan and secondary
market fees were $1.6 million less than
those generated in 2003.

Our affiliate in Marshalltown, Iowa, United
Bank & Trust, which was chartered in late
June, 2002, turned the corner and posted
a $105,000 profit last year in its second

full year of operation. United Bank
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continues to grow, ending the year with $90
million in total assets, a 31% increase over
2003. Loans increased to $46 million and

‘ deposits to $79 million at the end of 2004.

Two important measures of profitability are
return on average assets and return on aver-
age equity. For 2004, these benchmarks
were 1.56% and 11.47% respectively,
compared to 1.60% and 11.16% for 2003.

The 2004 efficiency ratio was 46.59%, a
slight improvement over the 47.18% in 2003.
The efficiency ratio is the measure of the
Company’s ability to manage non-interest
expense. It is interesting to note that in sec-
ond quarter of 2004, Ames National
Corporation was ranked the 29th most effi-
cient out of the 500 largest bank holding
companies in the United States. In 2003 it
was ranked 36th.

Total assets rose 12% to a record
$839,753,000, which was $86,967,000
higher than year-end 2003. All banks
increased their assets by adding to their loan
portfolios while the majority of our affili-
ates also increased their deposits this past
year. The stronger loan demand is a result of
increased confidence that the economy is
showing signs of strengthening.

Deposits rose 6.2% over the previous year
to a record $658,176,000. First National
Bank, Ames, State Bank & Trust, Nevada
and United Bank & Trust, recorded the
largest increases, with checking with inter-
est deposits accounting for most of the gain
by growing 26% to $172,313,000 in 2004.
Qur goal is to continue to add core deposits
in our affiliate banks. We are confident this
can be accomplished in 2005.




Loans  increased  $56,105,000 to
$411,639,000, a 15.8% increase over the
$355,533,000 shown at the end of 2003.
Activity in the commercial and the com-
mercial real estate loan areas accounted for
most of the loan growth in 2004. The
allowance for loan losses rose to
$6,476,000, a 7.0% increase over the
$6,051,000 posted a year ago. During
2004, net charge offs were $54,000
compared to $352,000 in 2003.

Capital rose to a record $110,924,000,
including $7,468,000 in unrealized gains on
securities on December 31, 2004, compared
to $107,325,000 and $8,916,000 respec-
tively, at the end of 2003. The capital to
asset ratio was 13.21% at the end of 2004.

Managing both sides of the balance sheet is
extremely important in a time of rising inter-
est rates, as deposit liabilities tend to reprice
more quickly than earning assests, causing
the Company’s net interest margin to com-
press. The asset-liability committee in each
bank meets weekly to establish competitive
rate schedules for both loans and deposits.

OUR PEOPLE

Three officers were added to our staff in
2004. Lana Jarvis, auditor, joined the
Company in the second quarter; Nicole
Gebhart, marketing officer, and Lori Hill,
assistant corporate secretary, assumed their
duties in the fourth quarter. Jarvis and
Gebhart brought with them experience
which enables the Company to provide the
expertise required to assist our affiliate
banks to become more efficient in their
operations. Hill's primary responsibilities
will be in shareholder relations. Prior to
joining Ames National Corporation, these

three individuals worked at our largest affil-
iate, First National Bank, with Jarvis spend-
ing nine years in operations and auditing,
Gebhart eight years in marketing and Hill
seven years as an administrative assistant.

REGULATIONS

Regulations continue to be an onerous and
an expensive proposition for publicly-held
community banking organizations. The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which became law in
2002, has proved to be a challenge as we
strive to be compliant with Section 404 of
this act. Section 404 requires companies to
establish internal controls over financial
reporting and the outside auditor to attest
that there are no material weaknesses in
these controls which could result in the pos-
sibility of a misstatement of financial results.

The company has always promoted a strong
internal audit program to ensure proper
adherence to internal control procedures.
Our staff spent many hours this year in
documenting and testing our control proce-
dures to comply with Section 404 and we
are pleased to receive an unqualified report
from our outside audit firm in 2004.

COMPANY STOCK

Company stock, traded under the symbol
ATLO, was listed on the NASDAQ
SmallCap Market on December 3, 2004.
During the first day of trading, the price
ranged from $95 to $99 and closed at $99
per share. In 2004, only 95,100 shares
were traded, but volume is expected to
increase with the listing on the NASDAQ
SmallCap Market. Company stock is being
considered for inclusion in the Russell 2000
index when it is reconstituted on the last

Ames
National
Corporation

Gorperale Values

Inneverive
Empowering employees
to be innovative and
service-minded

Community-fMinded
Doing what is right for
our communities through
local ownership

Flexible
Providing added value o
customers through local
decision making

Trusted
Maintaining a staff
of financial experts
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To OurR SHAREHOLDERS

Friday in June 2005. The Russell 2000 is
comprised of the smallest 2,000 of the
largest 3,000 publicly traded U.S. stocks.

During 2004, our stock ranged in price
from $58.25 to $105 and ended the year at
$80.50. Dividends declared payable to
shareholders in 2004 totaled $2.42 per
share, which compares to $2.28 per share
declared in 2003. Included in these totals
was the payment of a special dividend of
$.49 per share in 2004 and $.46 per share
in 2003.

STRATEGIC FOCUS

The revised Company Strategic Plan, which
was reviewed by the Company board of
directors, affiliate bank presidents and
Company staff, was implemented in 2004,
Several issues were identified which will
receive renewed empbhasis including market-
ing, technology and human resource activi-
ties. Managing capital to enhance sharehold-
er value remains a central part of the plan.

Through the strategic planning process, key
marketing initiatives were identified to
streamline the marketing process through-
out the Company and to ensure that corpo-
rate values are communicated effectively to
employees, customers and shareholders.
The addition of Nicole Gebhart as
Company marketing director has provided a
needed resource to assist our banks in pro-
viding a consistent approach to marketing
their products and services to customers.
Both human resources and the marketing
staff will help communicate the Company's
core values throughout the organization and
expand communication opportunities.

‘ 4 [ Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report

The human resources staff has developed a
plan to strengthen the hiring practices by
working to match the right person with the
right position. Plans are in place to improve
training for our employees to better prepare
them to serve their customers. The training
process will also focus on creating a culture
of personal responsibility and accountability
for all employees.

Technology continues to present challenges
as we strive to provide our banks and their
customers with the tools to perform the
necessary activity associated with a modern
banking organization. Protecting the privacy
of customer information, including guarding
against identity theft, is an important issue
which is receiving a great deal of attention
by banking regulators, outside auditors and
the Company board of directors. Significant
effort has been put forth to ensure
proper controls are in place to protect
customer information.

THE YEAR AHEAD

Company growth through acquisition,
branching or the chartering of de novo banks
remains a high priority. Each new opportuni-
ty is addressed with the ultimate goal that
such activity will result in higher sharehold-
er value.

We remain committed to maintaining our
corporate culture and the core values that
drive our relationships. We must be innova-
tive and flexible while maintaining the high-
est level of integrity. The local decision
making concept, used in all of our affiliate
banks, will continue to be an important part
of our community image.
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Providing quality facilities for our customers
continues to be a priority. Randall-Story
State Bank, Story City, restored the exteri-
or of its bank building to the look it had in
the early 1900s, as seen in this photograph.
The project was the recipient of an award
from the Master Builders of Iowa for being
unique and innovative.

State Bank & Trust, Nevada, is considering
an expansion of its facilities to provide bet-
ter access for drive up banking customers
and to add additional space for banking
operations. United Bank & Trust is exploring
other locations in Marshalltown in order to
attract new account relationships and to
better serve its current customners.

The banking industry is undergoing an
upsurge in the number of bank branches
being built in nearly every community that
exhibits a propensity for growth. It is imper-
ative that the opportunities identified with
opening a new bank branch far outweigh the
obstacles associated with entering a new,

New Facade at Randall-Story State Bank, Story City, lowa.

highly competitive market.
Long term profitability must
remain the driving force when
considering such a decision.

The
interest rates five times in 2004
with short term interest rates
mirroring the increases. The Fed
appears to be poised to continue
increasing rates in 2005 to com-
bat the threat of increased infla-
tion. The stock market recorded
moderate gains in 2004 while
long-term interest rates moved within a rel-

Federal Reserve raised

atively narrow range.

SPECIAL THANKS

As each year comes to a close, we are
reminded of the many people who support
our quest to be the best community banking
organization in the state. We are blessed
with talented and hard working employees
and boards of directors at both the affiliate
bank and Company level.

We also thank our customers for giving us
the opportunity to provide them with finan-
cial services over this past year and to our
shareholders for their continued support.

Sincerely,

T

Daniel L. Krieger
Chairman & President
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L COMPANY DIRECTORS

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:

James R. Larson, [f President Larson Development Corporation (redl estate development), Douglas €. Gustalfsen Veterinarian

Boone Veterinary Hospital, Frederick €. Samuslsom President James Michael & Assaciates, Inc. {retail variety) Robar? L. Cramer
President & Chief Operating Officer Fareway Stores, Inc. (grocery stores) and Warren R. Maodden Vice President

for Business & Finance, lowa State University

FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Charles D. Jons independent Medical Consultant, Daniel L. Krieger Chairman & President of the Company, Marvin J. Waller
President Dayton Road Development Corporation (real estote development) and Betty A. Bawdler Horras President Baudler

Enterprises, Inc. {marketing)

| &
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BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Motthew R. Hackbart Asst. Information Systems Manager, Timaothy J. lupardus Asst. Vice President & Information Systems
Manager, Daniel L. Krieger Chairman & President, John P. Melson Vice President and Principal Financial Officer, Kevin @.

Deardorf Vice President & Technology Director, and Tracy W. Laws Asst. Vice President & Auditor

FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT:
Lori J. Hill Asst. Corporate Secrefary, Micole J. Gebhart Asst. Vice President & Marketing Officer, Lana M. Jarvis Auditor and

Jacki L. Foley Vice President of Human Resources

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annudl Report | 7 |
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Ames National Corporation (the “Company”) is an lowa corpora-
tion and bank holding company registered under the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended. The Company owns 100% of
the stock of five banking affiliates consisting of two national banks
and three state-chartered banks. All of the Company’s operations
are conducted in the State of Iowa and primarily within the cen-
tral Towa counties of Boone, Story and Marshall where the
Company’s banking subsidiaries are located. The Company does
not engage in any material business activities apart from its own-
ership of its banking subsidiaries. The principal executive offices of
the Company are lodated at 405 Fifth Street, Ames, Iowa 50010
and its telephone number is (515) 232-6251.

The Company was organized in 1975, to serve as a holding com-
pany for its principal banking subsidiary, First National Bank,
Ames, lowa, (“First National”) located in Ames, lowa. In 1983,
the Company acquired the stock of the State Bank & Trust Co.
{“State Bank”) located in Nevada, lows; in 1991, the Company,
through a newly-chartered state bank known as Boone Bank &
Trust Co. (“Boone Bank”), acquired certain assets and assumed
certain liabilities of the former Boone State Bank & Trust
Company located in Boone, Iowa; in 1995, the Company acquired
the stock of the Randall-Story State Bank (“Randall-Story Bank”)
located in Story City, Iowa; and in 2002, the Company chartered
and commenced operations of a new national banking organiza-
tion, United Bank & Trust NA (“United Bank”), located in
Marshalltown, Iowa. First National, State Bank, Boone Bank,
Randall-Story Bank and United Bank are each operated as a whol-
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COMPANY INFORMATION

ly owned subsidiary of the Company. These five financial institu-
tions are referred to in this Report collectively as the “Banks” and
individually as a “Bank.”

The principal sources of Company revenue are: (i) interest and
fees earned on loans made by the Banks; (ii) service charges on
deposit accounts maintained at the Banks; (iii) interest on fixed
income investments held by the Banks; (iv) fees on trust services
provided by those Banks exercising trust powers; and (v} securities
gains and dividends on equity investments held by the Company
and the Banks.

The Banks’ lending activities consist primarily of short-term and
medium-term commercial and residential real estate loans, agri-
cultural and business operating loans and lines of credit, equip-
ment loans, vehicle loans, personal loans and lines of credit, home
improvement loans and secondary mortgage loan origination. The
Banks also offer a variety of demand, savings and time deposits,
cash management services, merchant credit card processing, safe
deposit boxes, wire transfers, direct deposit of payroll and social
security checks and automated teller machine access. Four of the

five Banks also offer trust services.

The Company provides various services to the Banks which
include, but are not limited to, management assistance, auditing
services, human resources services and administration, compliance
management, marketing assistance and coordination, loan review

and assistance with respect to computer systems and procedures.
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LEFT TO RIGHT
Stephen C. MeGill State Bank & Trust Co.; Jelffrey K. Putzier Boone Bank & Trust Co.; Thomas K. Pohlman First National
Bank, Ames; Leo E. Herrick United Bank & Trust; ond Hareld E. Thempsen Randall-Story State Bank

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report | @ |



ms
National AFFILIATE BANKS

Corporation
- BooNE BANK & TRusT Co.

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT: Robert L. Cramer, Richard Blomgren, Douglas €. Gustafson, DVM
and Patricl J. McMullan FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT: Jeffrey K. Putzier, Danisl L. Krieger and
Williem $. Zinnel

ORGANIZED:

The Bank was organized in 1992 by the Company under a new state charter in connection with a purchase and assumption
transaction whereby Boone Bank & Trust Co. purchased certain assets and assumed certain liabilities of the former Boone State

Bank & Trust Co. in exchange for a cash payment.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

As of December 31, 2004, Boone Bank & Trust Co. had capital of $12,622,000 and 28 full-time equivalent employees. It
had net income of $2,059,000 in 2004, $1,920,000 in 2003 and $1,827,000 in 2002. Total assets as of December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were $112,578,000, $110,712,000 and $96,829,000, respectively.

LOCATIONS:

Main Office: 716 8th Street, Boone
Branch Office: 1326 S. Story Street, Boone

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Phone: (515)1432-6200

Fax:  (515):432-3312 BOONE
Web:  www.boonebankiowa.com B A NK

Email: service@boonebankiowa.com & TRUST CO.

10| Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report
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FIRsT NATIONAL BANK orporatiog

BACK ROW LEFT TO RIGHT: Charles D. Jons, MD, Terrill L. Wycoff, Jomes R. Larsen, Ui, Dean E.
Hunziker ond Thomas H. Pohlman FRONT RCW, [EFT TO RIGHT: Tahira K. Hira, PhD, Daniel L.
Krieger, Marvin J. Walter and Belty A. Baudler Horras

ORGANIZED:

The Bank was organized in 1903 and became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in 1975 through a bank holding
company organization whereby the then shareholders of First National exchanged all of their First National stock for stock

in the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

As of December 31, 2004, First National had capital of $40,482,000 and 91 full-time equivalent employees. The Bank
had net income of $6,949,000 in 2004, $6,621,000 in 2003 and $6,294,000 in 2002. Total assets as of December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were $436,074,000, $381,086,000 and $375,341,000, respectively.

LocATIONS:

Main Office University Office

405 5th Street, Ames 2330 Lincoln Way, Ames
Cub Foods Office North Grand Office

3121 Grand Avenue, Ames 2406 Grand Avenue, Ames

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Phone: (515) 232-5561

Fax: (515) 232-5778 ST FIRST
Web: www.FNBames.com “ NATIONAL

Email: info@FNBames.com BAN K AMES

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report | 11 |
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C ti
orporatiog RANDALL-STORY STATE BANK

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT: Elaine C. Tekippe, $teven D. Forth, John P. Nelson, Edward €.
Jacobson and Gary G. Yulgameott FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT: David L. Morrls, Harold B,
Thompson and Orley L. Kilburn

ORGANIZED:

The Bank was organized in 1928 and acquired by the Company in 1995 through a stock transaction whereby the then
shareholders of Randall-Story State Bank exchanged all their Randall-Story Bank stock for stock in the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

As of December 31, 2004, Randall-Story State Bank had capital of $7,857,000 and 16 full-time equivalent employees.
It had net income of $1,036,000 in 2004, $810,000 in 2003 and $1,009,000 in 2002. Total assets as of December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were $74,427,000, $72,581,000 and $64,946,000, respectively.

LOCATIONS:
Main Office: 606 E. Broad, Story City
Branch Office: 450 Main Street, Randall

CONTACT INFORMATION: v AN

Phone: (515) 733-4396
Fax: (515) 733-2068 < R%B >
Web:  www.randallstory.com

Email: info@randallstory.com
RANDALL-STORY
STATE BANK
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STATE BANK & TRUST Co. o

BACK ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT: Gary W. Clem, John P. Nelson and Terrill L. Wycoff
FRONT ROW., LEFT TO RIGHT: Curtis A. Mo, Richard ©. Parker, Fred €. Samuelson, James G.
Frevert and Stephen €. McGill

ORGANIZED:

The Bank was organized in 1939 and acquired by the Company in 1983 through a stock transaction whereby the then
shareholders of State Bank exchanged all their State Bank stock for stock in the Company.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

As of December 31, 2004, State Bank & Trust Co. had capital of $11,288,000 and 22 full-time equivalent employees.
It had net income of $1,707,000 in 2004, $1,554,000 in 2003 and $1,501,000 in 2002. Total assets as of December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 were $112,599,000, $100,712,000 and $104,079,000, respectively.

LocCATIONS:

Main Office: 1025 6th Street, Nevada
McCallsburg Office: 425 Main Street, McCallsburg
Colo Office: 405 Main Street, Colo

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Phone: (515) 382-2191
Fax: (515) 382-3826 @
Web: www.banksbt.com

Email: info@banksbt.com STATE BANK & TRUST CO.

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report | 13|
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’ UNITED BANK & TrRusT, NA

BACK ROW. LEFT TO RIGHT: Kevin L. Swartz, Keith R. Brown and John $. Wise
FRONT ROW, LEFT TO RIGHT Larry A. Raymon, Leo E. Herrick and Danie! L. Krieger

ORGANIZED:

The Bank was newly chartered in June of 2002.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

As of December 31, 2004, United Bank & Trust had capital of $6,902,000 and 17 full-time equivalent employees.
The Bank had'a profit of $105,000 in 2004 and posted a net loss in 2003 of $465,000 and for the six and one-half month
period ended December 31, 2002, a loss of $524,000. Total assets as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were
$89,653,000, $68,397,000 and $30,355,000, respectively.

LocATiON:

Main Office: 2101 S. Center Street, Marshalltown

CONTACT INFORMATION:

Phone: (641} 753-5900
Fax: (641} 753-0800

Web: www.ubtna.com

Email: info@ubtna.com ‘
N\

UNITED BANK & TRUST
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Five YEAR PERFORMANCE RECORD

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Return on Average Assets 1.56%  1.60% 1.78% 1.71% 1.46%
Return on Average Equity 11.5% 11.2% 11.5% 11.5% 11.4%
Dividend Yield 3.0% 3.9% 4.7% 42% 2.9%

Efficiency Ratio

46.6%  472%  44.6% 41.9% 44.8%

Five YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

AVERAGE DEPOSITS
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
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The following financial data of the Company for the five years ended December 31, 2004 through 2000 is derived from the Company’s
historical audited financial statements and related footnotes. The information set forth below should be read in conjunction with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” and the consolidated financial statements and
related notes contained elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Year Ended December 31

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA

Interest Income $37,354 $35,314 $36,270 $41,474 $44,018
Interest expense 10,564 10,339 11,663 18,883 24,261
Net interest income 26,790 24,975 24,607 22,591 19,757
Provision for loan losses 479 645 688 898 460

Net interest income after provision

for loan losses 26,311 24,330 23,919 21,693 19,297
Noninterest income 5,269 6,435 5,135 5,080 4,130
Noninterest expense 14,935 14,819 13,276 11,587 10,712
Income before provision for income tax 16,645 15,946 15,778 15,186 12,715
Provision for income tax 4,255 4,321 4,438 4,639 3,596

Net Income $12,390 $11,625 $11,340 $10,547 $9,119

DIVIDENDS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA

Cash dividends declared $7,590 $7,142 $6,820 $5,187 $4,932
Cash dividends declared per share $2.42 $2.28 $2.18 $1.66 $1.58
Basic and diluted earnings per share $3.95 $3.71 $3.63 $3.38 $2.92
Weighted average shares outstanding 3,135,235 3,131,224 3,127,285 3,123,885 3,120,375
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets $839,753 $752,786 $677,229 $622,280 $619,385
Net loans 411,639 355,533 329,593 323,043 344,015
Deposits 658,176 619,549 550,622 511,509 493,429
Stockholders’ equity 110,924 107,325 101,523 93,622 86,177
Equity to assets ratio 13.21% 14.26% 14.99% 15.04% 13.91%
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Net income $12,390 $11,625 $11,340 $10,547 $9,119
Average assets 793,076 726,945 635,816 616,971 626,560
Average stockholders’ equity 108,004 104,141 98,282 91,373 80,081
Return on assets (net income divided by average assets) 1.56% 1.60% 1.78% 1.71% 1.46%
Return on equity (net income divided by average equity) 11.47% 11.16% 11.54% 11.54% 11.39%
Efficiency ratio (noninterest expense divided by

noninterest income plus net interest income) 46.59% 47.18% 44.64% 41.87% 44.84%
Dividend payout ratio (dividends per share

divided by net income per share) 61.27% 61.46% 60.05% 49.11% 54.11%
Dividend yield (dividends per share divided by

closing year-end market price) 3.01% 3.91% 4.69% 4.15% 2.87%
Equity to assets ratio (average equity divided

by average assets) 13.62% 14.33% 15.46% 14.81% 12.78%
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OVERVIEW

Ames National Corporation (Company) is a bank holding com-
pany established in 1975 that owns and operates five bank sub-
sidiaries (Banks} in central Towa. The following discussion is
provided for the consolidated operations of the Company and
its Banks, First National, State Bank, Boone Bank, Randall-
Story Bank and United Bank. The purpose of this discussion is
to focus on significant factors affecting the Company's financial

condition and results of operations.

The Company does not engage in any material business activities
apart from its ownership of the Banks. Products and services
offered by the Banks are for commercial and consumer purposes,
including loans, deposits and trust services. The Banks also offer
investment services through a third-party broker dealer. The
Company employs ten individuals to assist with financial reporting,
human resources, audit, compliance, marketing, technology sys-
tems and the coordination of management activities, in addition to

174 full-time equivalent individuals employed by the Banks.

The Company’s primary competitive strategy is to utilize sea-
soned and competent Bank management and local decision mak-
ing authority to provide customers with prompt response times
and flexibility in the products and services offered. This strate-
gy is viewed as providing an opportunity to increase revenues
through creating a competitive advantage over other financial
institutions. The Company also strives to remain operationally
efficient to provide better profitability while enabling the

Company to offer more competitive loan and deposit rates.

Ames
National
Corporation

The principal sources of Company revenues and cashflow are:
(i) interest and fees earned on loans made by the Banks; (ii)
service charges on deposit accounts maintained at the Banks;
(iii) interest on fixed income investments held by the Banks; (iv)
fees on trust services provided by those Banks exercising trust
powers; and (v) securities gains and dividends on equity invest-
ments held by the Company and the Banks. The Company’s
principal expenses are: (i) interest expense on deposit accounts
and other borrowings; (i) salaries and employee benefits; (iii)
data processing costs associated with maintaining the Banks' loan
and deposit functions; and (iv) occupancy expenses for main-
taining the Banks’ facilities. The largest component contributing
to the Company's net income is net interest income, which is
the difference between interest earned on earning assets (prima-
rily loans and investments) and interest paid on interest bearing
liabilities (primarily deposit accounts and other borrowings).
One of management’s principal functions is to manage the
spread between interest earned on earning assets and interest
paid on interest bearing liabilities in an effort to maximize net
interest income while maintaining an appropriate level of inter-

est rate risk.

The Company reported record net income of $12,390,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to $11,625,000
and $11,340,000 reported for the years ended December 31,
2003, and 2002, respectively. This represents an increase of
6.6% when comparing 2004 and 2003, and an increase of 2.5%
when comparing 2003 and 2002. The improvement in net
income for 2004 can be attributed primarily to higher net inter-

est income resulting from a higher volume of loans and invest-
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ments partially offset by lower secondary market income and
security gains. The gain in net income in 2003 over 2002 related
primarily to higher net interest income, secondary market
income and security: gains. Earnings per share for 2004 were a
record $3.95 compared to $3.71 in 2003 and $3.63 in 2002.
Each of the Banks had profitable operations during 2004.

The Company's return on average equity for 2004 was 11.47%
versus 11.16% and 11.54% in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Higher net income and lower capital levels relating to the aver-
age net unrealized gain on securities available for sale contributed
to the improved return on average equity in 2004. The
Company’s return on average assets for 2004 was 1.56% com-
pared to 1.60% in 2003 and 1.78% in 2002. The decline in the
return on average assets in 2004 can be attributed to growth in

assets at slightly lower profitability margins.

The following discussion will provide a summary review of

important items relating to:

* Challenges

* Key Performance Indicators and Industry Results
* Critical Accounting Policy

* Income Statement Review

¢ Balance Sheet Review

* Asset Quality and|Credit Risk Management

¢ Liquidity and Capital Resources

* Interest Rate Risk

* Inflation

* Forward-Looking Statement

|18
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CHALLENGES

Management has identified certain challenges that may negative-
ly impact Company's revenues in the future and is attempting to

position the Company to best respond to those challenges.

* Rising interest rates may present a challenge to the
Company in 2005. Continued increases in interest rates
may negatively impact the Company's net interest margin if
interest expense increases more quickly than interest
income. The Company's earning assets (primarily its loan
and investment portfolio) have longer maturities than its
interest bearing liabilities (primarily deposits and other bor-
rowings); therefore, in a rising interest rate environment,
interest expense will increase more quickly than interest
income as the interest bearing liabilities reprice more quick-
ly than earning assets. In response to this challenge, the
Banks model quarterly the changes in income that would
result from various changes in interest rates. Management
believes Bank earning assets have the appropriate maturity
and repricing characteristics to optimize earnings and the

Banks’ interest rate risk positions.

* The Company’s market in central Iowa has numerous
banks, credit unions, investment and insurance companies
competing for similar business opportunities. This competi-
tive environment will continue to put downward pressure
on the Banks’ net interest margins and thus affect profitabil-
ity. Strategic planning efforts at the Company and Banks
continue to focus on capitalizing on the Banks’ strengths in
local markets while working to identify opportunities for

improvement to gain competitive advantages.




Substandard performance in the Company’s equity portfolio
could lead to a reduction in the historical level of realized
security gains, thereby negatively impacting the Company's
earnings. The Company invests capital that may be utilized
for future expansion in a portfolio of primarily financial and
utility stocks with an estimated fair market value of approxi-
mately $25 million as of December 31, 2004. The Company
focuses on stocks that have historically paid dividends in an

effort to lessen the negative effects of a bear market.

Ames
National
Corporation

Key PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
AND INDUSTRY RESULTS

Certain key performance indicators for the Company and the
industry are presented in the following chart. The industry fig-
ures are compiled by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and are derived from 8,975 commercial banks and sav-
ings institutions insured by the FDIC. Management reviews
these indicators on a quarterly basis for purposes of comparing
the Company's performance from quarter to quarter against the

industry as a whole.

SELECTED INDICATORS FOR THE COMPANY AND THE INDUSTRY

Year Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Company Industry Company : Industry Company Industry
Return on Assets 1.56% 1.29% 1.60% 1.38% 1.78% 1.30%
Return on Equity 11.47% 13.28% 11.16% 15.04% 11.54% 14.14%
Net Interest Margin 3.97% 3.53% 4.02% 3.73% 4.51% 3.96%
Efficiency Ratio 46.59% 58.03% 47.18% - 56.59% 44.64% 56.00%
Capital Ratio 13.62% 8.12% 14.33% 7.88% 15.46% 7.87%
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KEeY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

* Return on Assets

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average
assets. It is used to measure how effectively the assets of the
Company are being utilized in generating income. Although
the Company’s return on assets ratio compares favorably to
that of the industry, this ratio declined slightly in 2004 as
compared to 2003 as assets grew more quickly relative to

net income.

Return on Equity

This ratio is calculated by dividing net income by average
equity. It is used ‘to measure the net income or return the
Company generated for the shareholders’ equity investment
in the Company. 'The Company’s return on equity ratio is
below that of theiindustry primarily as a result of the higher
level of capital the Company maintains for future growth and
acquisitions. The ICompany’s return on equity improved in
2004 as a result of net income growing more quickly in rela-

tion to average equity.
* Net Interest Margin

The ratio is calculdted by dividing net interest income by aver-

age earning assets.|Earning assets consist primarily of loans and
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investments that earn interest. This ratio is used to measure
how well the Company is able to maintain interest rates on
earning assets above those of interest-bearing liabilities, which
is the interest expense paid on deposit accounts and other
borrowings. The Company’s net interest margin compares
favorable to the industry; however, management expects the
competitive nature of the Company’s market environment to

put downward pressure on the Company’s margin.
Efficiency Ratio

This ratio is calculated by dividing noninterest expense by net
interest income and noninterest income. The ratio is a meas-
ure of the Company'’s ability to manage noninterest expenses.
The Company’s efficiency ratio compares favorably to the

industry average.
Capital Ratio

The capital ratio is calculated by dividing average total equity
capital by average total assets. It measures the level of average
assets that are funded by shareholders’ equity. Given an equal
level of risk in the financial condition of two companies, the
higher the capital ratio, generally the more financially sound
the company. The Company’s capital ratio is significantly
higher than the industry average.




INDUSTRY RESULTS

The FDIC Quarterly Banking Profile reported the following
results for the fourth quarter of 2004:

Strong loan growth and wider net interest margins did not off-
set the negative effects of merger expenses at large banks and
lower gains on sales of securities and other assets in the fourth
quarter. Insured commercial banks and savings institutions
reported $31.8 billion in net income for the quarter, a decline of
$668 million (2.1%) from the record earnings registered in the
third quarter. Nevertheless, the industry’s earnings were the
third-highest ever reported, and represented a $787 million
(2.5%) improvement over the fourth quarter of 2003. Also, the
industry’s net operating (core) income, which does not include
gains on securities sales, set a new quarterly record of $30.9 bil-
lion. The average return on assets (ROA) was 1.28% in the
fourth quarter, marking the first time in two years that the
industry’s quarterly ROA has been below 1.30%. Fewer than
half of all insured banks and thrifts (48.4%) had an ROA of 1%
or higher in the fourth quarter, but this was an improvement
over the fourth quarter of 2003, when only 44.8% achieved this
benchmark level of profitability. Almost two out of every three
institutions (62.1%) had higher net income than in the fourth
quarter of 2003.

CrimcAL ACCOUNTING PoLicy

This discussion and other disclosures included within this report
are based on the Company'’s audited consolidated financial state-
ments. These statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The financial information contained in these statements

is, for the most part, based on.the financial effects of transactions
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and events that have already occurred. However, the preparation
of these statements requires management to make certain esti-
mates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses.

The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in the
“Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” accompanying the
Company’s audited financial statements. Based on its consideration of
accounting policies that involve the most complex and subjective esti-
mates and judgments, management has identified the allowance for
loan losses to be the Company’s most critical accounting policy.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for
loan losses that is treated as an expense and charged against earn-
ings. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when
management believes that collectibility of the principal is unlikely.
The Company has policies and procedures for evaluating the over-
all credit quality of its loan portfolio, including timely identification
of potential problem loans. On a quarterly basis, management
reviews the appropriate level for the allowance for loan losses, incor-
porating a variety of risk considerations, both quantitative and qual-
itative. Quantitative factors include the Company’s historical loss
experience, delinquency and charge-off trends, collateral values,
known information about individual loans and other factors.
Qualitative factors include the general economic environment in
the Company’s market area and the expected trend of the econom-
ic conditions. To the extent actual results differ from forecasts and
management’s judgment, the allowance for loan losses may be

greater or lesser than future charge-offs.

INCOME STATEMENT REVIEW

The following highlights a comparative discussion of the major com-

ponents of net income and their impact for the last three years.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES

The following two tables are used to calculate the Company’s net interest margin. The first table includes the Company's average
assets and the related income to determine the average yield on earning assets. The second table includes the average liabilities
and related expense to determine the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities. The net interest margin is equal to the inter-
est income less the interest expense divided by average earning assets.

ASSETS
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Average Revenue/ Yield/ Average Revenue/ Yield/ Average Revenue Yield/
balance  expense rate balance  expense rate = balance  expense rate
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Loans
Commercial $48,775  $2,548 5.22% $38,288 $2,163 5.65% $42,948 $3,042 7.08%
Agricultural 28,406 1,839 6.47% 25,962 1,783 6.87% 25,274 1,895  7.50%
Real estate 285,087 17,169 6.02% 264,494 16,909 6.39% 229,805 16,929 7.37%
Consumer and other 23,079 1,317 5.71% 21,068 1,342 6.37% 19,494 1,341 6.88%
Total loans (including fees) $385,347 $22,873 5.94% $349,812 $22,197 6.35% $317,521 $23,207 7.31%
INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Taxable $213,043  $8,911 4.18% $162,273  $7,925 4.88% $142,089 $8,414 5.92%
Tax-exempt 127,048 8,125 6.40% 101,482 6,820 6.72% 78,171 5,797  7.42%
Total investment securities $340,091 $17,036 5.01% $263,755 $14,745 5.59% $220,260 $14,211 6.45%
Interest bearing deposits with banks $8,713 $130 1.49% $4,511 $62 1.37% $534 $14  2.62%
Federal funds scld 11,630 159 1.37% 60,293 628 1.04% 51,206 810 1.58%
Total Interest-earning assets $745,781 $40,198 5.39% $678,371 $37,632 5.55% $589,521 $38,242 6.49%
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $27,581 $27,733 $28,206
Premises and equipment, net 8,517 8,599 7,912
Other, less allowance for loan losses 11,197 12,242 10,177
Total noninterest-earning assets $47,295 $48,574 $46,295
ToTAL ASSETS $793,076 $726,945 $635,816

1 Average loan balance includes nonaccrual loans, if any. Interest income collected on nonaccrual loans has been included.
2 Tax-exempt incomie has been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using an incremental tax rate of 35% in 2004 and 34% for
prior years.
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND NTEREST RATES (CONT)

Liagiuimies AnD STOCKHOLDERS” EQuUITY

(dollars in thousands)
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2004 2003 2002
Average Revenue/ Yield/ Average Revenue/ Yield/ Average Revenue/ Yield/
balance expense rate balance expense rate balance expense rate

INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Deposits

Savings, NOW accounts,

and money markets $329,410  $3,210 0.97% $298,885 $2,758 0.92% $260,426  $3,393 1.30%

Time deposits < $100,000 173,581 4,974 2.87% 170,534 5,480 3.21% 152,703 6,107 4.00%

Time deposits > $100,000 70,076 1,759 2.51% 65,759 1,807 2.75% 51,428 1,898 3.69%
Total deposits $573,067  $9,943 1.74% $535,178 $10,045 1.88% $464,557 $11,398 2.45%
Other borrowed funds 38,211 620 1.62% 19,588 293 1.48% 13,887 265 1.91%
Total Interest-bearing liabilities $611,278 $10,563 1.73% $554,766 $10,338 1.86% $478,444 $11,663 2.44%
NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Demand deposits $65,785 $59,614 $53,318
Other liabilities 8,009 8,424 5,772
Stockholders’ equity $108,004 $104,141 $98,282
Total LIABILTIES AND
STocKHOLDERS EoQuUITY $793,076 $726,945 $635,816
Net interest income $29,635 3.97% $27,294 4.02% $26,579 4.51%
Spread Analysis
Interest income/average assets $40,198 5.07% $37,632 5.18% $38,242  6.01%
Interest expense/average assets 10,563 1.33% 10,334 1.42% 11,663 1.83%
Net interest income/average assets 29,635 3.74% 27,294 3.76% 26,579  4.18%

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report | 23 |



Ames
National
Corporation

RATE AND VOLUME ANALYSIS

The rate and volume analysis is used to determine how much of the change in interest income or expense is the result of a change

in volume or a change in interest rate. For example, real éstate interest income increased $260,000 in 2004 compared to 2003. An

increased volume of real estate loans added $1,272,000 in income in 2004; however, lower interest rates reduced interest income

in 2004 by $1,012,000, a net difference of $260,000.

2004 Compared to 2003

2003 Compared to 2002

(dollars in thousands) Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
INTEREST INCOME
Loans:

Commercial $559 ($174) $385 (3307} (3572) ($879)

Agricultural 163 (107) 56 50 (162) (112)

"Real estate 1,272 (1,012) 260 2,384 (2,404) (20)

Consumer and other 121 (146) (25) 104 (103) 1
Total loans (including fees) $2,115 ($1,439) $676 $2,231 ($3,241) (3$1,010)
Investment securities:

Taxable $2,234 ($1,248) $986 $1,103 ($1,592) ($489)

Tax-exempt 1,644 (339) 1,305 1,608 (585) 1,023
Total investment securities $3,878 ($1,587) $2,291 $2,711 $2,177) $534
Interest bearing deposits with banks $62 $6 $68 $58 ($10) $48
Federal funds sold (622) 153 ($469) 127 (309) ($182)
Total Interest-earning assets $5,433 ($2,867) $2,566 $5,127 ($5,737) ($610)
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits:

Savings, NOW accourits, and money markets $285 $167 $452 $452 ($1,086) ($634)

Time deposits < $100,000 96 (602) (506) 663 (1,290) (627)

Time deposits > $100,000 119 (167} (48) 457 (548) (91)
Total deposits $500 (8602) ($102) $1,572 ($2,924) ($1,352)
Other borrowed funds 281 46 327 93 (68) 25
Total Interest-bearing liabilities $781 ($556) $225 31,665 ($2,992) ($1,327)
Net interest income/earning assets $4,652 ($2,311) $2,341 $3,462 ($2,745) $717

1. The change in interest due to both volume and yield/rate has been allocated to change due to volume and change

due to yield/rate in proportion to the absolute value of the change in each.

NET INTEREST [NCOME

The Company’s largest component contributing to net income is
net interest income, which is the difference between interest
earned on earning assets (which are primarily loans and invest-
ments) and interest paid on interest bearing liabilities (which are
primarily deposit accounts and other borrowings). The volume of
and yields earned on iearning assets and the volume of and the
rates paid on interest bearing liabilities determine net interest
income. Refer to the tables preceding this paragraph for addition-

al detail. Interest earned and interest paid is also affected by gen-
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eral economic conditions, particularly changes in market interest
rates, and by government policies and the action of regulatory
authorities. Net interest income divided by average earning assets
is referred to as net interest margin, For the years December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s net interest margin was
3.97%, 4.02% and 4.51%, respectively. Yields on earning assets
declined faster than those of interest bearing liabilities and led to
a slight decline in the Company’s net interest margin in 2004.
Assets repricing to lower market rates resulted in the decline net

interest margin in 2003 from 2002,
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The high level of competition in the local markets will continue
to put downward pressure on the net interest margin of the
Company into the foreseeable future. Currently, the Company's
largest market, Ames, Towa, has seven banks, three thrifts, four
credit unions and several other financial investment companies.
Multiple banks are also located in the Company’s other commu-

nities creating similarly competitive environments.

Net interest income during 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled
$26,790,000, $24,975,000 and $24,607,000, respectively, rep-
resenting a 7.27% increase in 2004 from 2003 and a 1.50%
increase in 2003 compared to 2002. A higher volume of earning
assets was primary reason for the increase in net interest income
in 2004. The higher net interest income in 2003 resulted from
lower interest expense as the Company was able to lower rates
paid on deposits and other borrowings more quickly than rates

declined on loans and investments.

ProvisioN FOR LoaN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses reflects management’s judgment of
the expense to be recognized in order to maintain an adequate
allowance for loan losses. The Company provided a $479,000
provision for loan losses during 2004 compared to $645,000 in
2003 and $688,000 in 2002. Net charge-offs declined signifi-
cantly in 2004 and was the primary reason for the lower level of
provision expense in 2004. In 2003 and 2002, net charge-offs
approximated 55% of the total loan provisions while loan growth
was the primary contributor for the remaining provisions. Refer
to the Asset Quality and Credit Risk Management discussion for

additional detail with regard to loan loss provision expense.

Management believes the allowance for loan losses to be ade-
quate to absorb probable losses in the current portfolio. This
statement is based upon management’s continuing evaluation of
inherent risks in the current loan portfolio, current levels of clas-
sified assets and general economic factors. The Company will
continue to monitor the allowance and make future adjustments

to the allowance as conditions dictate.
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NONMINTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE

Total noninterest income is comprised primarily of fee-based
revenues from trust and agency services, bank related service
charges on deposit activities, net securities gains generated pri-
marily by the Company’s equity holdings, merchant and ATM
fees related to electronic processing of merchant and cash trans-

actions and secondary market income.

Noninterest income during 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled
$5,269,000, $6,435,000 and $5,135,000, respectively, repre-
senting an 18.12% decrease in 2004 from 2003 and a 25.33%
increase in 2003 compared 2002. The decrease in 2004 is the
result of lower secondary market income and net securities gains
that increased over 56% in 2003 from 2002. In 2003, low inter-
est rates fueled a record year in mortgage refinancing resulting in
record secondary market income. The Company also realized a
higher level of securities gains in 2003 through liquidating equi-
ty holdings that no longer fit the Company’s long term
investment strategy.

Noninterest expense for the Company consists of all operating
expenses other than interest expense on deposits and other bor-
rowed funds. Historically, the Company has not had any materi-
al expenses relating to discontinued operations, extraordinary
losses or adjustments from a change in accounting principles.
Salaries and employee benefits are the largest component of the
Company’s operating expenses and comprise 60.39% of nonin-

terest expenses in 2004.

Noninterest expense during 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled
$14,935,000, $14,820,000 and $13,276,000, respectively, repre-
senting a 0.78% increase in 2004 versus 2003 and an 11.62%
increase in 2003 compared to 2002. The retirement of several
higher paid senior officers allowed for stable non-interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
same period in 2003. An increase in salaries and employee bene-
fits was the largest contributor to the increase in operating
expenses in 2003 and related primarily to additional staffing at
United Bank as a result of its significant growth. The percentage
of noninterest expense to average assets was 1.88% in 2004, com-
pared to 2.04% and 2.09% during 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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ProvisioN FOR [NCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was
$4,255,000, $4,321)000 and $4,438,000, respectively. This
amount represents arn effective tax rate of 25.57% during 2004,
compared to 27.10% and 28.13% for 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. The Company’s marginal federal tax rate is currently
35%. The difference between the Company’s effective and mar-
ginal tax rate is primarily related to investments made in tax
exempt securities. THe average balance of tax exempt securities

increased $25,566,000 in 2004 compared to 2003.
BALANCE SHEET REVIEW

The Company’s assets are comprised primarily of loans and
investment securities. Average earning asset maturity or repric-
ing dates are less than five years for the combined portfolios as
the assets are funded for the most part by short term deposits
with either immediate availability or less than one year average
maturities. This exposes the Company to risk with regard to
changes in interest rates that are more fully explained in the sec-
tion of this report “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
about Market Risk.”
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Total assets increased to $839,753,000 in 2004 compared to
$752,786,000 in 2003, an 11.55% increase. First National, State
Bank and United Bank posted double digit growth in assets ver-

Sus one year ago.

LoaN PORTFOLIO

Net loans for the year ended December 31, 2004, increased to
$411,639,000 from $355,533,000 as of December 31, 2003,
an increase of 15.78%. The increase in loan volume can be pri-
marily attributed to growth in the commercial, commercial real
estate and residential loan portfolios. Loans are the primary
contributor to the Company's revenues and cash flows. The
average yield on loans was 93 and 76 basis points higher in 2004
and 2003, respectively, than the average tax-equivalent invest-

ment portfolio yields for the same periods.




Tyres OF LOANS

The following table sets forth the composition of the

Company’s loan portfolio for the past five years ending at

December 31, 2004.

(dollars in

thousands}) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Real Estate

Construction $21,042  $13,126 $13,518 $12,677 $12,221

1-4 family

residential 97,612 84,645 81,239 84,379 97,663

Commercial 160,176 150,723 136,351 117,211 112,415

Agricultural 27,443 24,297 21,693 21,029 21,095
Commercial 57,189 38,555 40,097 45,631 53,955
Agricultural 30,713 27,815 26,022 27367 28199
Consumer i

and other 24,584 23,242 19921 20,920 24,576
Total loans 418,759 362,403 338,841 329,214 350,124
Deferred loan

fees, net 644 819 777 725 736
Total loans net of

deferred fees $418,115 3$361,584 $338,064 $328,489 $349,388

The Company's loan portfolio consists of real estate loans, com-
mercial loans, agricultural loans and consumer loans. As of
December 31, 2004, gross loans totaled approximately $419 mil-
lion, which equals approximately 64% of total deposits and 50%
of total assets. The Company’s peer group (consisting of 353 bank
holding companies with total assets of $500 to $1,000 million)
loan to deposit ratio as of September 30, 2004 was a much high-
er 86%. The primary factor relating to the lower loan to deposit
ratio for the Company compared to peer group averages is a more
conservative underwriting philosophy. As of December 31, 2004,
the majority of the Joans were originated directly by the Banks to
borrowers within the Banks’ principal market areas. There are no

foreign loans outstanding during the years presented.
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Real estate loans include various types of loans for which the
Banks hold real property as collateral and consist of loans prima-
rily on commercial properties and single family residences. Real
estate loans typically have fixed rates for up to five years, with
the Company’s loan policy permitting a maximum fixed rate
maturity of up to 15 years. The majority of construction loan vol-
ume is to contractors to construct commercial buildings and
these loans generally have maturities of up to 12 months.
The Banks originate residential real estate loans for sale to the

secondary market for a fee.

Commercial loans consist primarily of loans to businesses for var-
ious purposes, including revolving lines to finance current opera-
tions, floor-plans, inventory and accounts receivable; capital
expenditure loans to finance equipment and other fixed assets;
and letters of credit. These loans generally have short maturities,
have either adjustable or fixed rates and are unsecured or secured

by inventory, accounts receivable, equipment and/or real estate.

Agricultural loans play an important part in the Banks' loan port-
folios. Iowa is a major agricultural state and is a national leader in
both grain and livestock production. The Banks play a significant
role in their communities in financing operating, livestock and

real estate activities for area producers.

Consumer loans include loans extended to individuals for
household, family and other personal expenditures not secured
by real estate. The majority of the Banks' consumer lending is
for vehicles, consolidation of personal debts, household

appliances and improvements.

The interest rates charged on loans vary with the degree of risk
and the amount and maturity of the loan. Competitive pressures,
market interest rates, the availability of funds and government
regulation further influence the rate charged on a loan. The Banks
follow a loan policy, which has been approved by both the board
of directors of the Company and the Banks, and is overseen by
both Company and Bank management. These policies establish

lending limits, review and grading criteria and other guidelines
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such as loan administration and allowance for loan losses. Loans
are approved by the Banks’ board of directors and/or designated
officers in accordance with respective guidelines and underwrit-
ing policies of the Company and Banks. Loans to any one bor-
rower are limited by applicable state and federal banking laws.
Credit limits generally vary according to the type of loan and the

individual loan officer’s experience.

MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITIES OF LOANS TO CHANGES
N vreresT RATES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004

The contractual maturities of the Company’s loan portfolio are
as shown below. Actual maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because individual borrowers may have the right to

prepay loans with or without prepayment penalties.

After lyear
Within but within After
(dollars in thousands) 1 year S years 5 years Total
Real Estate ‘
Construction $i0,154 $2,400 $8,488  $21,042
1-4 Family Residential 3,968 41,797 51,847 97,612
Commercial 14,670 113,706 31,800 160,176
Agricultural 1,262 7,639 18,542 27,443
Commercial 38,122 14,823 4,244 57,189
Agricultural 19,141 8,473 3,099 30,713
Consumer and other 2,563 15,328 6,693 24,584
Total loans $89,880 $204,166 $124,713 $418,759
After 1
year but
within After
5 years 5 years
Loan maturities after one year with:
Fixed rates $174,184 $42,045
Variable rates 29,982 82,668
$204,166 $124,713

2
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Loans HEewp FOrR SALE

Mortgages awaiting delivery to the secondary market totaled
$234,000 and $859,000 as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Residential mortgage loans are originated by the
Banks and sold to several secondary mortgage market outlets
based upon customer product preferences and pricing considera-
tions. The mortgages are sold in the secondary market to elimi-
nate interest rate risk and to generate secondary market fee
income. It is not anticipated at the present time that loans held

for sale will become a significant portion of total assets.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

Total investments as of December 31, 2004, were $363,460,000,
an increase of $40,344,000 or 12% from the prior year end. As
of December 31, 2004, and 2003, the investment portfolio com-
prised 43% of total assets.

The following table presents the market values, which represent
the carrying values due to the available-for-sale classification, of
the Company’s investment portfolio as of December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. This portfolio provides the
Company with a significant amount of liquidity since all of the
investments are considered available for sale as of December 31,

2004, 2003 and 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

U.S. treasury securities $531 $2,229 $4,208
U.S. government agencies 137,634 118,637 85,780
State and political subdivisions 113,818 105,963 70,516
Corporate bonds 77,573 63,586 56,357
Equity securities 33,904 32,701 27,714
Total $363,460 $323,116 $244,575

Investments in states and political subdivisions represent pur-
chases of municipal bonds located primarily in the state of lowa

and contiguous states.
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Investment in other securities includes corporate debt obligations
of companies located and doing business throughout the United
States. The debt obligations were all within the credit ratings
acceptable under the Banks’ investment policies. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company did not have securities from
a single issuer, except for the United States Government or its
agencies, which exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders’
equity. The equity securities portfolio consists primarily of finan-
cial and utility stocks as of December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

INVESTMENT MATURITIES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004

The investments in the following table are reported by contrac-
tual maturity. Expected maturities may differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or pre-

pay obligations with or without prepayment penalties.

After 1 After 5
year but years but
Within within  within  After
(dollars in thousands) 1 year 5 years 10 years 10 years Total
U.S. treasury $ - $ - $531 % - $531
U.S. government
agencies 9,691 102,607 18,546 6,790 137,634
States and political
subdivisions 5,867 33,271 46,760 27,920 113,818
Corporate bonds 4,891 58,871 13,811 - 77,573

Total $20,449 $194,749  $79,648 $34,710 $329,556

Weighted average

yield
U.S. treasury - - 5.19% - 5.19%
U.S. government

agencies 460%  3.30% 449% 446% 3.63%
States and political

subdivisions* 527%  5.36% 6.68% 6.15% 6.09%
Corporate bonds 4.55% 4.53% 5.31% - 4.67%
Total 478%  4.03% 593% 5.81% 4.73%

*Yields on tax-exempt obligations of states and political subdivisions

have been computed on a tax-equivalent basis.
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DEPOSITS

Total deposits equaled $658,176,000 and $619,549,000 as of
December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The increase of
$38,627,000 can be attributed to deposit growth at four of the
five Banks, with United Bank and First National posting the
largest increases of $16,656,000 and $14,861,000, respective-
ly. Average deposits for the year ended December 31, 2004,
were $37,889,000 higher than the same period in 2003. The
deposit category seeing the largest balance increases were
NOW accounts.

The Company's primary source of funds is customer deposits.
The Company attempts to attract noninterest-bearing deposits,
which are a low-cost funding source. In addition, the Banks
offer a variety of interest-bearing accounts designed to attract
both short-term and longer term deposits from customers.
Interest-bearing accounts earn interest at rates established by
Bank management based on competitive market factors and the
Company’s need for funds. While nearly 57% of the Banks' cer-
tificates of deposit mature in the next year, it is anticipated that
a majority of these certificates will be renewed. Rate sensitive
certificates of deposits in excess of $100,000 are subject to
somewhat higher volatility with regard to renewal volume as
the Banks adjust rates based upon funding needs. In the event
a substantial volume of certificates are not renewed, the
Company has sufficient liquid assets and borrowing lines to
fund significant runoff. A sustained reduction in deposit volume
would have a significant negative impact on the Company’s
operation and liquidity. The Company traditionally has not
relied upon brokered deposits and does not anticipate utilizing

such funds at the present time.
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AVERAGE DEPOSITS BY TYPE

The following table sets forth the average balances for each major category of deposit and the weighted average interest rate paid
for deposits during the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Amount  Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Noninterest bearing idemand deposits $65,785 $59,614 $53,318

Interest bearing demand deposits 154,332  0.80% 130,138 0.70% 115,494  1.00%

Money market deposits 146,479  1.25% 143,478 1.20% 120,446  1.71%

Savings deposits 28,599 047% 25,269 0.50% 24,486  0.71%

Time certificates < $100,000 173,581 2.87% 170,534 3.21% 152,703  4.00%

Time certificates > $100,000 70,076  2.51% 65,759 2.75% 51,428  3.69%
$638,852 $594,792 $517,875

DerosiT MATURITY!

The following table shows the amounts and remaining maturities of time certificates of deposit that had balances of $100,000 and

over as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

3 months or less $20,613 $23,801 $15,162
Over 3 through 12 months 29,217 29,896 25,939
Over 12 through 36 months 17,131 11,374 9,281
Over 36 months 2,103 4416 4,182
Total $69,064 $69,487 $54,564
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BorrROWED FUNDS

Borrowed funds that may be utilized by the Company are com-
prised of Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances, federal
funds purchased and repurchase agreements. Borrowed funds
are an alternative funding source to deposits and can be used to
fund the Company’s assets and unforeseen liquidity needs.
FHLB advances are loans from the FHLB that can mature daily
or have longer maturities for fixed or floating rates of interest.
Federal funds purchased are borrowings from other banks that
mature daily. Securities sold under agreement to repurchase
(repurchase agreements) are similar to deposits as they are funds
lent by various Bank customers; however, the bank pledges
investment securities to secure such borrowings. The
Company’s repurchase agreements normally reprice daily. The
Company does not have any FHLB advances or federal funds
purchased outstanding as of December 31, 2004,

The following table summarizes the outstanding amount of, and
the average rate on, borrowed funds as of December 31, 2004,

2003 and 2002.

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Average . Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate  Balance Rate

FHLB advances $ - - $ - - % - -

Federal funds purchased
& repurchase agreements 64,072 1.99% 18,199 1.3%% 18326 1.50%

Total $64,072  1.99% $18,199 1.39% $18,326 1.50%

AVERAGE ANNUAL BORROWED FUNDS

The following table sets forth the average amount of, the average

rate paid and maximum outstanding balance on, borrowed funds

for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002

Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Balance Rate  Balance Rate

FHLB advances $ - - $ - - $47 4.26%
Federal funds purchased

& repurchase agreements 38,211  1.62% 19,588 1.48% 13,840 191%
Total $38,211 1.62% $19,588 1.48% $13,887 191%
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2004 2003 2002
Maximum Amount
Outstanding during
the year:
FHLB advances $ - $ - $1,000
Federal funds purchased
& repurchase agreements 65,391 22,728 18,326

OrF-BALANCE-SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-
sheet risk in the normal course of business. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. The instruments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
balance sheet. For additional information, see footnote 9 of the

“Notes to Consolidated Statements.”

AsSET QUALITY REVIEW AND
CReDIT RiSKk MANAGEMENT

The Company’s credit risk is centered in the loan portfolio,
which on December 31, 2004 totaled $411,639,000 as com-
pared to $355,533,000 as of December 31, 2003, an increase
of 15.78%. Loans comprise 49% of total assets as of the end of
2004. The object in managing loan portfolio risk is to reduce
the risk of loss resulting from a customer’s failure to perform
according to the terms of a transaction and to quantify and
manage credit risk on a portfolio basis. As the following chart
indicates, the Company’s credit risk management practices
have resulted in a low level of non-performing assets that total
$2,748,000 as of December 31, 2004. The Company’s level of
problem assets as a percentage of assets of 0.33% compares
favorably to the average for FDIC insured institutions as of
September 30, 2004 of 0.61%.

NoN-PERFORMING ASSETS

The following table sets forth information concerning the
Company’s non-performing assets for the past five years ending
December 31, 2004.

(Chart on next page)
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(dollars in thousands)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
NON-PERFORMING ‘
ASSETS:
Non-accrual loans  $1,896  $1,756 $2,015 $2,692 $2,663
Loans 90 days or
more past due
and still accruing
interest 80 431 394 797 242
1,976 2,187 2,409 3,489 2,905
Other real
estate owned 772 159 295 159 75

Total non-

performing assets $2,748  $2,346 $2,704

$3,648 $2,980

The accrual of interest on non-accrual and other impaired loans
is discontinued at 90 days or when, in the opinion of manage-
ment, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as they
become due. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid
accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently rec-
ognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Interest
income on restructured loans is recognized pursuant to the
terms of the new loan agreement. Interest income on other
impaired loans is monitored and based upon the terms of the
underlying loan agreement. However, the recorded net invest-
ment in impaired loans, including accrued interest, is limited to
the present value of 'the expected cash flows of the impaired

loan or the observable fair market value of the loan’s collateral.

Outstanding loans of $481,000 were placed on non-accrual
status in 2004 with total non-accrual loans equaling
$1,896,000 as of December 31, 2004. Qutstanding loans of
$200,000 were placed on non-accrual status in 2003 with total
non-accrual loans equaling $1,756,000 as of December 31,
2003. Outstanding loans of $383,000 were placed on non-
accrual status in 2002 with total non-accrual loans equaling
$2,015,000 as of December 31, 2002. A real estate loan at
First National with a December 31, 2004, and 2003 balance of
$1,305,000 is the latgest non-performing asset. For the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, interest income,

which would have béen recorded under the original terms of
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such loans was approximately $239,000, $179,000 and
$160,000, respectively, with $211,000, $177,000 and
$17,000, respectively, recorded. Loans greater than 90 days
past due and still accruing interest were $80,000 and $431,000
at December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

SUMMARY OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LoAN LOSSES

The provision for loan losses represents an expense charged
against earnings to maintain an adequate allowance for loan loss-
es. The allowance for loan losses is management's best estimate
of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance
sheet date. Factors considered in establishing an appropriate
allowance include: an assessment of the financial condition of
the borrower; a realistic determination of value and adequacy of
underlying collateral; the condition of the local economy and the
condition of the specific industry of the borrower; an analysis of
the levels and trends of loan categories; and a review of delin-

quent and classified loans.

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is evaluated quar-
terly by management and the respective Bank boards. This eval-
uation focuses on specific loan reviews, changes in the type and
volume of the loan portfolio given the current and forecasted
economic conditions and historical loss experience. Any one of
the following conditions may result in the review of a specific
loan: concern about whether the customer’s cash flow or net
worth are sufficient to repay the loan; delinquent status;
criticism of the loan in a regulatory examination; the accrual of
interest has been suspended; or other reasons, including when
the loan has other special or unusual characteristics which war-

rant special monitoring.

While management uses available information to recognize loss-
es on loans, further reductions in the carrying amounts of loans
may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions.
In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their
examination process, periodically review the estimated losses on
loans. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize
additional losses based on their judgment about information

available to them at the time of their examination.
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ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
The Company’s policy is to charge-off loans when, in management’s opinion, the loan is deemed uncollectible, although concerted
efforts are made to maximize future recoveries. The following table sets forth information regarding changes in the Company’s

allowance for loan losses for the most recent five years.

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Balance at beginning of period $6,051 $5,758 $5,446 $5,373 $4,986
CHARGE-OFFS
Real Estate

Construction - 24 - - -

1-4 Family Residential 19 5 - - -

Commercial 93 - 40 - -

Agricultural - - - : - -
Commercial 3 392 235 768 55
Agricultural - - - - ‘ -
Consumer and other 115 43 155 83 96

230 464 430 852 - 151

RECOVERIES
Real Estate

Construction - - - - -

1-4 Family Residential - - 20 - -

Commercial - - - - -

Agricultural - - - ~ -
Commercial 13 100 14 8 66
Agricultural - - - - -
Consumer and other 163 12 20 19 12

176 112 54 27 78

Net charge-offs 54 352 376 825 73
Additions charged to

operations 479 645 688 898 460
Balance at end of period $6,476 $6,051 $5,758 $5,446 $5,273
Average loans outstanding $385,347 $349,812 $317,521 $341,440 $339,115

Ratio of net charge-offs during the
period to average loans
outstanding 0.01% 0.11% 0.12% 0.24% 0.02%

Ratio of allowance for loan losses
to total loans net of deferred fees 1.55% 1.67% 1.70% 1.65% 1.54%
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The allowance for loan losses increased to $6,476,000 at the end
of 2004 in comparison to the allowance of $6,051,000 at year
end 2003. The increase can be primarily attributed to the
growth of general reserves at First National. The increase in the
reserve levels in 2003 relate primarily to general reserves estab-
lished by United Bank. The 2002 increase relates primarily to
First National as the result of higher specific reserves for two
problem credits identified by management prior to 2002 and a
large specific reserve for a newly downgraded preblem loan in
2002. Problem commiercial leases identified at First National in
2001 led to higher provision expense, net charge-offs and specif-
ic reserves as credit weaknesses were identified in 2001.
General reserve allocations remained consistent in 2004 with

prior years.

General reserves for loan categories normally range from 1.00 to
1.30% of the outstanding loan balances. As loan volume increas-
es, the general reserve levels increase with that growth. As the
previous table indicgtes, loan provisions have been trending
downward since 2001 as the level of net charge-offs has
declined. The general reserve loss factors have remained consis-
tent over the five-year period presented. The allowance relating
to commercial real estate and 1-4 family residential loans are the
largest reserve components. Commercial real estate loans have
higher general reserve levels than other real estate loans as man-
agement perceives more risk in this type of lending. Elements
contributing to the higher risk level include susceptibility of
businesses to changirig environmental factors such as the eco-
nomic business cycle, the larger individual loan amounts, a lim-
ited number of buyers and the specialized uses for some proper-
ties. As of December 31, 2004, commercial real estate loans
have general reserves of 1.30%. The estimation methods and
assumptions used in determining the allowance for the five years

presented have remained consistent.
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Loans that the Banks have identified as having higher risk levels
are reviewed individually in an effort to establish adequate loss
reserves. These reserves are considered specific reserves and are
directly impacted by the credit quality of the underlying loans.
Normally, as the actual or expected level of non-performing
loans increase, the specific reserves also increase. For December
31, 2004, specific reserves decreased $431,000 or 23.50% com-
pared to year end 2003 levels as four of the five banks had
improved loan quality. As of December 31, 2003, specific
reserves increased $146,000 or 8.65% over year end 2002. In
2003, specific allocations to problem agricultural real estate
loans was the largest contributor to the increase in the specific
reserve level when compared to year end 2002. Specific alloca-
tions for commercial real estate loans triggered the increase in
2002 while commercial leases contributed to the increase in
total reserve levels in 2001. The specific reserves are dependent
upon assumptions regarding the liquidation value of collateral
and the cost of recovering collateral including legal fees.
Changing the amount of specific reserves on individual loans has
had the largest impact on the reallocation of the reserve among

different parts of the portfolio.

Other factors that are considered when determining the ade-
quacy of the reserve include loan concentrations, loan growth,
the economic outlook and historical losses. The Company’s
concentration risks include geographic concentration in central
Iowa; the local economy’s dependence upon several large gov-
ernmental entity employers, including Iowa State University
and the Towa Department of Transportation; and the health of
lowa's agricultural sector that in turn, is dependent on weather
conditions and government programs. No significant reserves
have been established for local and national economic condi-
tions over the last five-year period as the economic outlook has
generally been favorable. However, no assurances can be made
that losses will remain at the favorable levels experienced over

the past five years.
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ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LoaN LOSSES

The following table sets forth information concerning the Company’s allocation of the allowance for loan losses.

(dollars in thousands) ‘ 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amount % * Amount % * Amount % * Amount % * Amount % *
Balance at end of period
applicable to:
Real Estate
Construction $429 5.02% $196  3.62% $210 3.9%% $178 3.99% $163 3.49%
1-4 Family Residential 1,021 23.31% 948 23.36% 892 23.98% 980 23.98% 1,088 27.89%
Commercial 2,676 38.25% 2,663 41.59% 2,453 40.24% 1,704 40.24% 1,619 32.11%
Agricultural 486  6.55% 458  6.70% 302 6.40% 279 6.40% 315  6.03%
Commercial 809 13.66% 775 10.64% 910 11.83% 938 11.83% 754 15.41%
Agricultural 360 7.33% 488  7.68% 504 7.68% 457 7.68% 421 8.05%
Consumer and other 302 5.87% 255 6.41% 235 5.88% 258 588% 538  7.02%
Unallocated 393 268 252 652 475
$6,476 100% $6,051 100%  $5,758 100% $5,446 100% $5,373 100%

* Percent of loans in each category to total loans.

LiQuipity AND CAPITAL RESOURCES Liquidity is derived primarily from core deposit growth and

retention; principal and interest payments on loans; principal
Liquidity management is the process by which the Company,

through its Banks’ Asset and Liability Committees (ALCO),

ensures that adequate liquid funds are available to meet its

and interest payments, sale, maturity and prepayment of invest-
ment securities; net cash provided from operations; and access
to other funding sources. Other funding sources include federal

fi ial itment timely basis, at bl t
{nancial COMMILMENTS on & HMELy basts, at & reasonable €Ot finds purchased lines, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)

and within acceptable risk tolerances. These commitments
include funding credit obligations to borrowers, funding of
mortgage originations pending delivery to the secondary mar-
ket, withdrawals by depositors, maintaining adequate collateral
for pledging for public funds, trust deposits and borrowings,
paying dividends to shareholders, payment of operating expens-
es, funding capital expenditures and maintaining deposit

reserve requirements.

advances and other capital market sources.

As of December 31, 2004, the level of liquidity and capital
resources of the Company remain at a satisfactory level and
compare favorably to that of other FDIC insured institutions.
Management believes that the Company’s liquidity sources will
be sufficient to support its existing operations for the foresee-

able future.

Ames National Corporation 2004 Annual Report | 35 |




Ames
National
Corporation

The liquidity and capital resources discussion will cover the fol-

lows topics:

* Review the Company’s Current Liquidity Sources

* Review of the Statements of Cash Flows

* Review Company. Only Cash Flows

* Review of Commitments for Capital Expenditures, Cash
Flow Uncertainties and Known Trends in Liquidity and Cash
Flows Needs

* Capital Resources

Review oF THE Comprany’s CURRENT
LiQuipity SOURCES

Liquid assets of cash on hand, balances due from other banks, fed-
eral funds sold and interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions
for December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $48,199,000,
$58,725,000 and $85,189,000, respectively. The lower balance of
liquid assets as of December 31, 2004, relates to a lower level of

deposits maintained with other financial institutions.

Other sources of liquidity available to the Banks include out-
standing lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Des Moines, lowa of $28,471,000, federal funds borrowing
capacity at correspondent banks of $52,500,000. The Company
did not have any outstanding FHLB advances or federal funds
sold as of December 31, 2004 and securities sold under agree-
ment to repurchase totaled $64,072,000. Approximately
$40,000,000 in repurchases agreement balances at First
National are expected to be withdrawn gradually from January
to August 2005.

Total investments as of December 31, 2004, were
$363,459,000 compared to $323,116,000 as of year end 2003.
At both December 31, 2004, and 2003, the investment portfo-
lio as a percentage of laverage assets was 43%. This provides the
Company with a significant amount of liquidity since all of the
investments are classified as available for sale as of December
31, 2004, and 2003 and have net unrealized gains of
$11,854,000 and $14,152,000, respectively.

The investment portfolio serves an important role in the over-

all context of balance sheet management in terms of balancing

2%
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capital utilization and liquidity. The decision to purchase or sell
securities is based upon the current assessment of economic
and financial conditions, including the interest rate environ-
ment, liquidity and credit considerations. The portfolio’s
scheduled maturities represent a significant source of liquidity.

ReVIEW OF THE CONSOLUIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FlLows

Operating cash flows for December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
totaled $13,169,000, $14,828,000, and $13,803,000, respec-
tively. The decrease in operating cash flows in 2004 compared to
2003 included a reduction in loans held for sale and an increase
in other assets in 2004. These decreases were offset by security
gains realized in 2004 as compared to 2003 and an increase net
income. Security gains realized in 2004 were lower than in 2003
which created a significant variance in arriving at net operating
cash flows from net income totals. The primary variance in 2003
compared to 2002 was the source of cash provided from a lower
level of accrued expense and other liabilities that was a use of

cash in 2002.

Net cash used in investing activities for December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002 was $103,647,000, $96,479,000 and
$43,819,000, respectively. The largest investing activities in
2004 were the purchase of U.S. government agency and cor-
porate bonds and the funding of commercial operating and
commercial real estate loans offset by the maturities, calls and
sales of securities available for sale. U.S. government agency
bonds, municipal bonds and commercial real estate loans were

the most significant investing activities in 2003.

Net cash provided by financing activities for December 31,
2004, 2003 and 2002 totaled $77,255,000, $61,944,000 and
$39,245,000, respectively. Growth in securities sold under
agreement to repurchase and deposits was the primary source of
financing funds in 2004. Deposit growth was the primary source
of cash flows for 2003 and 2002. As of December 31, 2004, the
Company did not have any external debt financing, off balance
sheet financing arrangements or derivative instruments linked to

its stock.
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The Company’s liquidity on an unconsolidated basis is heavily
dependent upon dividends paid to the Company by the Banks.
The Company requires adequate liquidity to pay its expenses
and pay stockholder dividends. In 2004, dividends from the
Banks amounted to $8,384,000 compared to $7,868,000 in
2003. Various federal and state statutory provisions limit the
amount of dividends banking subsidiaries are permitted to pay
to their holding companies without regulatory approval. Federal
Reserve policy further limits the circumstances under which
bank holding companies may declare dividends. For example, a
bank holding company should not continue its existing rate of
cash dividends on its common stock unless its net income is suf-
ficient to fully fund each dividend and its prospective rate of
earnings retention appears consistent with its capital needs,
asset quality and overall financial condition. In addition, the
Federal Reserve and the FDIC have issued policy statements
which provide that insured banks and bank holding companies
should generally pay dividends only out of current operating
earnings. Federal and state banking regulators may also restrict

the payment of dividends by order.

First National, as a national bank, generally may pay dividends
from undivided profits without restriction, provided that its sur-
plus fund is at least equal to its common stock capital fund.
Boone Bank, Randall-Story Bank and State Bank are also
restricted under lowa law to paying dividends only out of their
undivided profits. United Bank is not expected to generate suf-
ficient earnings to pay any dividends in 2005. Additionally, the
payment of dividends by the Banks is affected by the require-
ment to maintain adequate capital pursuant to applicable capital
adequacy guidelines and regulations, and the Banks generally are
prohibited from paying any dividends if, following payment
thereof, the Bank would be undercapitalized.

The Company has unconsolidated interest bearing deposits and
marketable investment securities totaling $34,902,000 that are

presently available to provide additional liquidity to the Banks.
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Review oF COMMITMENTS FOR CAPRITAL
ExPENDITURES, CaSH FLow UNCERTAINTIES
AND KNOWN TRENDS IN LIQUIDITY AND
CasK FLows NEEDS

No material capital expenditures or material changes in the cap-
ital resource mix are anticipated at this time. Commitments to
extend credit totaled $65,894,000 as of December 31, 2004
compared to a total of $71,100,000 at the end of 2003. The
timing of these credit commitments varies with the underlying
borrowers; however, the Company has satisfactory liquidity to
fund these obligations as of December 31, 2004. The primary
cash flow uncertainty would be a sudden decline in deposits
causing the Banks to liquidate securities. Historically, the Banks
have maintained an adequate level of short term marketable
investments to fund the temporary declines in deposit balances.
There are no known trends in liquidity and cash flow needs as of

December 31, 2004, that are a concern to management.

CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s total stockholders’ equity increased to
$110,924,000 at December 31, 2004, from $107,325,000 at
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, stock-
holders’ equity as a percentage of total assets was 13.21% and
14.26%, respectively. Total equity increased due to retention
of earnings which was partially offset by depreciation in the
Banks' investment portfolios. The capital levels of the
Company currently exceed applicable regulatory guidelines as
of December 31, 2004.

INTEREST RATE RisK

Interest rate risk refers to the impact that a change in interest
rates may have on the Company’s earnings and capital.
Management’s objectives are to control interest rate risk and to
ensure predictable and consistent growth of earnings and capital.
Interest rate risk management focuses on fluctuations in net inter-
est income identified through computer simulations to evaluate
volatility, varying interest rate, spread and volume assumptions.

The risk is quantified and compared against tolerance levels.
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The Company uses a third-party computer software simulation
modeling program to measure its exposure to potential interest
rate changes. For various assumed hypothetical changes in mar-
ket interest rates, nurmerous other assumptions are made such as
prepayment speeds on loans, the slope of the Treasury yield
curve, the rates and volumes of the Company’s deposits and the
rates and volumes of'the Company’s loans. This analysis meas-
ures the estimated change in net interest income in the event of

hypothetical changeslin interest rates.

Another measure of interest rate sensitivity is the gap ratio. This
ratio indicates the amount of interest-earning assets repricing
within a given period in comparison to the amount of interest-
bearing liabilities repricing within the same period of time. A gap
ratio of 1.0 indicates a matched position, in which case the effect
on net interest income due to interest rate movements will be
minimal. A gap ratio of less than 1.0 indicates that more liabili-
ties than assets reprice within the time period and a ratio greater

than 1.0 indicates that more assets reprice than liabilities.

The simulation model process provides a dynamic assessment of
interest rate sensitivity, whereas a static interest rate gap table is
compiled as of a point in time. The model simulations differ
from a traditional gap analysis as a traditional gap analysis does
not reflect the multiple effects of interest rate movement on the
entire range of assets and liabilities and ignores the future

impact of new business strategies.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

Asour MARKET RisK

The Company’s market risk is comprised primarily of interest
rate risk arising from lits core banking activities of making loans
and taking deposits. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in
market interest rates may adversely affect the Company’s net
interest income. Management continually develops and applies
strategies to mitigate this risk. Management does not believe that
the Company’s primary market risk exposure and how that expo-

sure was managed in 2004 changed when compared to 2003.

£

Based on a simulation modeling analysis performed as of
December 31, 2004, the following table presents the estimated
change in net interest income in the event of hypothetical

changes in interest rates for the various rate shock levels:

NeT InvEReEsT INCOME AT Risk

EsTimareD CHANGE 1N NET [NTEREST INCOME FOR YEAR
Enping Decemer 371, 2004

(dollars in thousands) $ Change % Change
+200 Basis Points (158) (0.6)%
+100 Basis Points N (0.3)%
-100 Basis Points (554) (2.0)%
-200 Basis Points (2,595) (©.5)%

As shown above, at December 31, 2004, the estimated effect of
an immediate 200 basis point increase in interest rates would
increase the Company’s net interest income by 0.6% or approx-
imately $158,000 in 2005. The estimated effect of an immedi-
ate 200 basis point decrease in rates would decrease the
Company’s net interest income by 9.5% or approximately
$2,595,000 in 2005. The

Management Policy establishes parameters for a 200 basis point

Company’s Asset Liability

change in interest rates. Under this policy, the Company and the
Banks’ objective is to properly structure the balance sheet to
prevent a 200 basis point change in interest rates from causing a
decline in net interest income by more than 15% in one year
compared to the base year that hypothetically assumes no

change in interest rates.

Computations of the prospective effects of hypothetical interest
rate changes are based on numerous assumptions. Actual values
may differ from those projections set forth above. Further, the
computations do not contemplate any actions the Company
may undertake in response to changes in interest rates. Current
interest rates on certain liabilities are at a level that does not
allow for significant repricing should market interest rates

decline considerably.
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CONTRACTUAL MATURITY OR REPRICING

The following table sets forth the estimated maturity or re-pricing, and the resulting interest sensitivity gap, of the Company’s inter-
est-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the cumulative interest sensitivity gap at December 31, 2004. The expected
maturities are presented on a contractual basis. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because of prepayment

assumptions, early withdrawal of deposits and competition.

Less than 3 1to Over
3 months to 5 5 Cumulative
months 1 year years years Total
(dollars in thousands)
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS 1
Interest-bearing deposits with banks $5,676 ‘ $1,272 $2,627 $ - $9,575
Federal funds sold 19,865 - - - 19,865
Investments * 5,158 15,291 194,749 148,261 363,459
Loans 103,940 28,146 218,301 68,372 418,759
Loans held for sale 234 234
Total interest-earning assets $134,873 $44,709 $415,677 $216,633 $811,892
INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES
Interest bearing demand deposits $172,313 - - - $172,313
Money market and savings deposits 174,358 - - - 174,358
Time certificates <$100,000 27,744 . 59,043 83,838 149 170,774
Time certificates >$100,000 20,613 29,217 19,234 - 69,064
Other borrowed funds 64,072 - - - 64,072
Total interest-bearing liabilities $459,100 $88,260 $103,072 $149 $650,581
Interest sensitivity gap ($324,227) ($43,551) $312,605 $216,484 $161,311
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap ($324,227) ($367,778) ($55,173) $161,311 $161,311
Cumulative interest sensitivity
gap as a percent of total assets -38.61% -43.80% -6.57% 19.21%

*Investments with maturities over 5 years include the market value of equity securities of $33,904.
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As of December 31,2004, the Company’s cumulative gap ratios
for assets and liabilities repricing within three months and with-
in one year were 39% and 44%, respectively, meaning more lia-
bilities than assets are scheduled to reprice within these periods.
This situation suggests that a decrease in market interest rates
may benefit net interest income and that an increase in interest
rates may negativelylimpact the Company. The liability sensitive
gap position is largely the result of classifying the interest bear-
ing NOW accounts, money market accounts and savings
accounts as immediately repriceable. Certain shortcomings are
inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing
table. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may
have similar maturities and periods to repricing, they may react
differently to changes in market interest rates. Also, interest
rates on assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes
in market interest rates, while interest rates on other assets and
liabilities may follow changes in market interest rates.
Additionally, certainjassets have features that restrict changes in
the interest rates of such assets, both on a short term basis and

over the lives of such assets.

INFLATION

The primary impactiof inflation on the Company’s operations is
to increase asset yields, deposit costs and operating overhead.
Unlike most industries, virtually all of the assets and liabilities of
a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, inter-
est rates generally have a more significant impact on a financial
institution’s perforrmance than they would on non-financial
companies. Although interest rates do not necessarily move in
the same direction dr to the same extent as the price of goods
and services, increases in inflation generally have resulted in
increased interest rates. The effects of inflation can magnify the
growth of assets and, if significant, require that equity capital

increase at a faster rate than would be otherwise necessary.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The discussion in the foregoing Management Discussion and
Analysis and elsewhere in this Report contains forward-looking
statements about the Company, its business and its prospects.
Forward-looking statements can be identified by the fact that

they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They

” o ” o«

often include use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”

n o

“intend,” “plan,” “estimate” or words of similar meaning, or
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “would,” “should,”
“could” or “may.” Forward-looking statements, by their nature,
are subject to risks and uncertainties. A number of factors, many
of which are beyond the Company’s control, could cause actual
conditions, events or results to differ significantly from those
described in the forward-looking statements. Such risks and
uncertainties with respect to the Company include, but are not
limited to, those related to the economic conditions, particularly
in the areas in which the Company and the Banks operate, com-
petitive products and pricing, fiscal and monetary policies of the
U.S. government, changes in governmental regulations affecting
financial institutions, (including regulatory fees and capital
requirements), changes in prevailing interest rates, credit risk
management and asset/liability management, the financial and
securities markets and the availability of and costs associated

with sources of liquidity.

These factors may not constitute all factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those discussed in any for-
ward-looking statement. The Company operates in a continually
changing business environment and new facts emerge from time
to time. It cannot predict such factors nor can it assess the
impact, if any, of such factors on its financial position or its
results of operations. Accordingly, forward-looking statements
should not be relied upon as a predictor of actual results. The
Company disclaims any responsibility to update any forward-

looking statement provided in this document,
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL

The management of Ames National Corporation is responsible
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. Ames National Corporation’s internal control
system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
company's management and board of directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate.

T

Daniel L. Krieger

Chairman and President

CJot ¥ Vebzor—

John P. Nelson

Vice President and Principal Financial Officer

Ames
National
Corporation

Ames National Corporation's management assessed the effective-
ness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, it used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we determined
that, as of December 31, 2004, the company’s internal control

over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Qur management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, has been audited by McGladrey & Pullen,
LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated

in their report which appears herein.
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McGladrey &Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Ames National Corporation and Subsidiaries
Ames, lowa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ames National Corporation and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion of these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Ames National Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with
U.S. generally, accepted accounting principles.

We also havejaudited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States), the effectiveness of Ames National Corporation and subsidiaries' internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31! 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {(COSO), and our report dated February 3, 2005, expressed an
unqualified opinion.

W beey f hllne, Lep
Des Moines, lowa
February 3, 2005

McGtadrey & Pullen, LLP is an independent member firm of
RSM international, an affiliation of independent accounting
and consulting firms.
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Ames National Corporation and Subsidiaries
Ames, lowa

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting that Ames Naticnal Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Contro! — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Ames National Corporation’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal con-
trol over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management's assessment and an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over the financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered neces-
sary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with general-
ly accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neces-
sary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that Ames National Corporation maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Also in our opinion, Ames National Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {(United
States), the balance sheets of Ames National Corporation as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related statements
of income, stockholders' equity and cash' flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004,
and our report dated February 3, 2005, expressed an unqualified opinion.

/7/4%//«/&%/ cer

Des Moines, lowa
February 3, 2005

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is an independent member firm of
RSM Intemational, an affiliation of independent accounting
and constiting firms.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks (Note 2}

Federal funds sold

Interest bearing deposits in financial institutions
Securities available-for-sale (Note 3)

Loans receivable, net. (Note 4)

Loans held for sale

Bank premises and equipment, net (Note 5)
Accrued income receivable

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQuUITY

LIABILITIES

Deposits {Note 6)
Demand, noninterest bearing
NOW accounts
Savings and money market
Time, $100,000 and over
Other time
Total deposits

Federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase

Dividend payable

Deferred income taxes (Note 8)

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 9)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Note 10)

Common stock, $5 par value, authorized 6,000,000 shares;

issued 2004 and 2003 3,153,230 shares;
outstanding 2004 3,137,066 shares;
2003 3,133,053 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost; 16,164 shares at December 31, 2004

and 20,177 shares at December 31, 2003
Accumulated other comprehensive income,

net unrealized gainion securities available-for-sale

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2004 2003
$18,759,086 $31,982,144
19,865,000 20,380,000
9,575,174 6,363,538
363,459,462 323,115,914
411,638,565 355,533,119
234,469 859,139
8,790,636 8,377,807
6,262,424 5,842,247
1,167,971 332,556

$839,752,787

$71,666,385
172,313,429
174,358,165

69,063,977

170,773,883

$658,175,839

$64,072,475
1,537,162
2,334,670

2,708,701
$728,828,847

$15,766,150
25,378,746
63,200,352
(889,020)

7,467,712

$110,923,940
$839,752,787
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$752,786,464

$71,372,534
138,308,140
166,387,319

69,486,570

173,993,964

$619,548,527

$18,198,403
1,441,204
3,238,665

3,034,670
$645,461,469

$15,766,150
25,351,979
58,400,660
(1,109,735)

8,915,941

$107,324,995
$752,786,464
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 - 2003 2002
Interest and dividend income
Loans, including fees $22,872,764 $22,197,335 $23,207,184
Securities
Taxable 8,536,759 7,510,671 7,931,041
Tax-exempt 4,274,033 3,604,641 2,938,423
Federal funds sold 159,438 628,203 810,675
Dividends 1,510,665 1,372,890 1,383,350
$37,353,659 $35,313,740 $36,270,673
Interest expense
Deposits $9,942,250 $10,045,178 $11,397,125
Other borrowed funds 621,077 293,604 265,845
$10,563,327 $10,338,782 $11,662,970
Net interest income $26,790,332 $24,974,958 $24,607,703
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) 479,355 645,447 688,431
Net interest income after provision for loan losses $26,310,977 $24,329,511 $23,919,272
Noninterest income
Trust department income $ 1,185,681 $1,225,099 $1,032,500
Service fees 1,813,795 1,513,964 1,492,344
Securities gains, net (Note 3) 324,030 1,395,320 889,923
Gain on sale of loans held for sale 610,077 1,155,311 739,907
Merchant and ATM fees 534,897 513,832 405,667
Other 800,835 631,949 574,473
Total noninterest income $5,269,315 $6,435,475 $5,134,814
Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits (Note 7) $9,019,139 $9,044,896 : $8,074,181
Data processing 2,241,441 2,188,488 1,934,006
Occupancy expenses 1,048,323 1,088,438 927,287
Other operating expenses 2,626,451 2,497,692 2,340,098
Total noninterest expense $14,935,354 $14,819,514 $13,275,572
Income before income taxes $16,644,938 $15,945,472 $ 15,778,514
Provision for income taxes (Note 8) 4,255,392 4,320,787 4,438,376
Net income $12,389,546 $11,624,685 $11,340,138
Basic earnings per share (Note 1) $3.95 $3.71 $3.63

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQuUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Comprehensive Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders’
Income Stock Capital Earnings Stock  Income (Loss) Equity
Balance, December 31, 2001 $15,766,150  $25,393,028  $49,397,011  $(1,530,805) $4,596,614 93,621,998
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income $11,340,138 - - 11,340,138 - - 11,340,138
Other comprehensivé income,
unrealized gains on securities,
net of reclassification adjustment,
net of tax (Note 3) 3,222,174 - - - - 3,222,174 3,222,174
Total comprehensive income $14,562,312
Cash dividends declared, $2.18 per share - - (6,819,605) - - (6,819,605)
Sale of 3,753 shares of treasury stock - (39,014) - 197,165 - 158,151
Balance, December 31, 2002 $15,766,150  $25,354,014  $53,917,544 ($1,333,640) $7,818,788 $101,522,856
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income $11,624,685 - - 11,624,685 - - 11,624,685
Other comprehensive income,
unrealizedAgains on securities,
net of reclassification adjustment,
net of tax (Note 3) 1,097,153 - - - - 1,097,153 1,097,153
Total comprehensive income m
Cash dividends declared, $2.28 per share - - (7,141,569) - - (7,141,569)
Sale of 4,071 shares of treasury stock - (2,035) - 223,905 - 221,870
Balance, December 31, 2003 $15,766,150 $25,351,979  $58,400,660 ($1,109,735) $8,915941  $107,324,995
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net income $12,389,546 - ~ 12,389,546 - 12,389,546
Other comprehensive income,
unrealized (losses) on securities,
net of reclassification adjustment,
net of tax benefit (Note 3) (1,448,229) - ~ - (1,448,229)  (1,448229)
Total comprehensive income $10,941,317 \
Cash dividends declared, $2.42 per share - - (7,589,854) - - (7,589,854)
Sale of 4,013 shares of treasury stock - 26,767 - 220,715 - 247,482
Balance, December 31, 2004 $15,766,150  $25,378,746  $63,200,352 $(889,020) $7,467,712 $110,923,940

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLows
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities
Provision for loan losses
Amortization and accretion
Depreciation
Provision for deferred taxes
Securities gains, net
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease loans held for sale
(Increase) decrease in accrued income receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities available-for-sale

Net decrease (increase) in interest bearing deposits in
financial institutions

Net (increase) in federal funds sold

Net decrease (increase) in loans

Purchase of bank premises and equipment

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in deposits

Increase (decrease) federal funds purchased and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase

Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
Beginning

Ending

(Continued on Next Page)

Ames
National

2004 2003 2002
$12,389,546 $11,624,685 $11,340,138
479,355 645,447 688,431
683,012 563,612 51,495
951,477 1,030,377 996,180
(53,448) (284,751) (200,013)
(324,030) (1,395,320) (889,923)
624,670 1,854,307 2,582,434
(420,177) 6,770 128,336
(835,415) 250,293 (344,372)
(325,969) $532,718 (549,337)
$13,169,021 $14,828,138 $13,803,369

$(163,349,539)
5,045,102
115,303,131

(3,211,636)
515,000
(56,584,801)

(1,364,306)
$(103,647,049)

$38,627,312

45,874,072
(7,493,896)
247,482

$77,254970

(13,223,058)

31,982,144

$18,759,086

$(194,136,066)
9,299,986
108,868,412

(5,363,538)
12,120,000
(26,585,515)
(681,787)
$(96,478,508)

$68,926,148
(127,171)
(7,077,117)
221,870
$61,943,730
(19,706,640)

51,688,784
$31,082,144

$(86,337,490)
26,635,715
34,855,926

(750,000)
(3,150,000)
(12,534,196)
(2,538,922)
$(43,818,967)

$39,113,124
6,729,400
(6,755,449)
158,151
$39,245226
9,229,628

42,459,156
551,688,784
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows (CONTINUED)

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash payments for:
Interest
Income taxes

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

NoOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Description of business: Ames National Corporation and sub-
sidiaries (the Company) operates in the commercial banking
industry through its subsidiaries in Ames, Boone, Story City,
Nevada and Marshalltown, Iowa. Loan and deposit customers
are located primarily in Story, Boone, Hamilton and Marshall

counties and adjacent counties in lowa.

Segment informatidon: The Company uses the “management
approach” for reporting information about segments in annual and
interim financial statements. The management approach is based
on the way the chief operating decision-maker organizes segments
within a company for making operating decisions and assessing
performance. Basedion the “management approach” model, the
Company has determined that its business is comprised of one
operating segment: banking. The banking segment generates rev-
enues through personal, business, agricultural and commercial
lending, managemerit of the investment securities portfolio, pro-

viding deposit account services and providing trust services.

Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Ames National Corporation (the Parent Company)
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, First National Bank, Ames,
Iowa; State Bank & Trust Co., Nevada, Jowa; Boone Bank & Trust
Co., Boone, lowa; Randall-Story State Bank, Story City, Iowa;
and United Bank & Trust NA, Marshalltown, lowa (collectively,
the Banks). All significant intercompany transactions and bal-

ances have been eliminated in consolidation.

=

2004 2003 2002
$10,623,125 $10,504,715 $12,211,439
4,516,823 4,553,669 4,725,572

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and lia-
bilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material esti-
mates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in
the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for

loan losses and fair value of financial instruments.

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and amounts due
from banks. The Company reports net cash flows for customer
loan transactions, deposit transactions and short term borrow-

ings with maturities of 90 days or less.

Securities available-for-sale: Securities available-for-sale consist
of equity securities and debt securities not classified as trading
or held-to-maturity and are carried at fair value. Unrealized
holding gains and losses, net of deferred income taxes, are
reported in a separate component of accumulated other com-
prehensive income until realized. Realized gains and losses on
the sale of such securities are determined using the specific
identification method and are reflected in the consolidated
statements of income. Premiums and discounts are recognized
in interest income using the interest method over the period to’

maturity or call date of the related security.
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Unrealized losses judged to be other than temporary are charged

to operations.

Loans held for sale: Loans held for sale are the loans the Banks
have the intent to sell in the foreseeable future. They are carried
at the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Net unrealized
losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by
charges to income. Gains and losses on sales of loans are recog-
nized at settlement dates and are determined by the difference

between the sale proceeds and the carrying value of the loans.

Loans: Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding, net
of deferred loan fees and the allowance for loan losses. Interest
on loans is credited to income as earned based on the principal
amount outstanding. The Banks’ policy is to discontinue the
accrual of interest income on any loan 90 days or more past due
unless the loans are well collateralized and in the process of col-
lection. Income on nonaccrual loans is subsequently recognized
only to the extent that cash payments are received. Nonaccrual
loans are returned to an accrual status when, in the opinion of
management, the financial position of the borrower indicates
there is no longer any reasonable doubt as to timely payment of

principal or interest.

Allowance for loan losses: The allowance for loan losses is main-.

tained at a level deemed appropriate by management to provide
for known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. The
allowance is based upon a continuing review of past loan loss
experience, current economic conditions and the underlying col-
lateral value securing the loans. Loans which are deemed to be
uncollectible are charged off and deducted from the allowance.
Recoveries on loans charged-off and the provision for loan loss-

es are added to the allowance.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current informa-
tion and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable
to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment
include payment status, collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due.
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Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial
and construction loans by either the present value of expected
future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate,
the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair value of the collat-

eral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collec-
tively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Company
does not separately identify individual consumer and residential

loans for impairment disclosures.

Premises and equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense is com-
puted using straight-line and accelerated methods over the esti-
mated useful lives of the respective assets. Depreciable lives range

from 3 to 7 years for equipment and 15 to 39 years for premises.

Trust department assets: Property held for customers in fiduciary
or agency capacities is not included in the accompanying consoli-

dated balance sheets, as such items are not assets of the Banks.

Income taxes: Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are meas-
ured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in
tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in

income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return,
with each entity computing its taxes on a separate company
basis. For state tax purposes, the Banks file franchise tax returns,

while the Parent Company files a corporate income tax return.

Comprehensive income: Accounting principles generally require
that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included
in net income. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities,
such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securi-
ties, are reported as a separate component of the equity section

of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, are

o)
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components of comprehensive income. Gains and losses on
available-for-sale securities are reclassified to net income as the
gains or losses are realized upon sale of the securities. Other-
than-temporary impairment charges are reclassified to net

income at the time of the charge.

Fair value of financial instruments: The following methods and
assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair

value disclosures:

Cash and due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-
bearing deposits . in_financial institutions: The recorded

amount of these assets approximates fair value.

Securities availabletfor-sale: Fair values of securities available-for-
sale are based on bid prices published in financial newspapers, bid
quotations received from securities dealers or quoted market
prices of similar instruments, adjusted for differences between

the quoted instruments and the instruments being valued.

Loans held for sale: The fair value of loans held for sale are

based on prevailing market prices.

Loans: The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting
scheduled cash flows through the estimated maturity using
estimated market [discount rates, which reflect the credit and
interest rate risk inherent in the loan. The estimate of matu-
rity is based on the historical experience, with repayments for
each loan classification modified, as required, by an estimate
of the effect of current economic and lending conditions. The
effect of nonperforming loans is considered in assessing the

credit risk inhererit in the fair value estimate.

Deposit liabilities: Fair values of deposits with no stated
maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, sav-
ings and NOW accounts and money market accounts, are
equal to the amount payable on demand as of the respective
balance sheet date. Fair values of certificates of deposit are
based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The
discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for
deposits of similar remaining maturities. The fair value esti-

mates do not include the bénefit that results from the low-
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cost funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to

the cost of borrowing funds in the market.

Other borrowings: The carrying amounts of federal funds

purchased and securities sold under agreements to repur-
chase approximate fair value because of the short-term

nature of the instruments.

Accrued income receivable and accrued interest pavable: The

carrying amounts of accrued income receivable and interest

payable approximate fair value.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit:
The fair values of commitments to extend credit and stand by

letters of credit are based on fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of
the agreement and credit worthiness of the counterparties. The
carry value and fair value of the commitments to extend credit

and standby letters of credit are not considered significant.

Limitations: Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time, based on relevant market information and informa-
tion about the financial instrument. Because no market exists
for a significant portion of the Company’s financial instru-
ments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding
future expected loss experience, current economic condi-
tions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments and
other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and,
therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in

assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share computations for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, were
determined by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the years then
ended. The Company had no potentially dilutive securities out-

standing during the periods presented.

The following information was used in the computation of basic
earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002. ‘
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2004 2003 2002

Basic earnings per
share computation
Net income $12,389,546 $11,624,685 $11,340,138
Weighted average common
shares outstanding

3,135,235
$3.95

3,131,224
$3.71

3,127,285
$3.63

Basic earnings per share

New ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 105, Application

of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments, was released
in March 2004. This release summarizes the SEC staff position
regarding the application of GAAP to loan commitments
accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company
accounts for interest rate lock commitments issued on mort-
gage loans that will be held for sale as derivative instruments.
Consistent with SAB No. 105, the Company considers the fair
value of these commitments to be zero at the commitment
date, with the subsequent changes in fair value determined
solely on changes in market interest rates. The Company's
adoption of this bulletin had no impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

At the March 17-18, 2004, Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF")
meeting, the Task Force reached a consensus on Issue No. 03-1,
The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and its
Application to Certain Investments. EITF 03-1 provides guid-
ance for determining the meaning of “other-than-temporarily
impaired” and its application to certain debt and equity securities
within the scope of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities (“SFAS 115"} and investments accounted for under
the cost method. The guidance set forth in the Statement was
originally to be effective for the Company in the September 30,
2004, consolidated financial statements. However, in September
2004, the effective dates of certain parts of the Statement were
delayed. Management is currently assessing the impact of Issue

03-1 on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised),
"Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”), establishing

accounting standards for transactions in which an entity
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exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services. SFAS No.
123R also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabil-
ities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair
value of the entity’s equity instruments, or that may be settled
by the issuance of those equity instruments. SFAS No. 123R
covers a wide range of share-based compensation arrangements
including stock options, restricted stock plans, performance-
based stock awards, stock appreciation rights and employee
stock purchase plans. SFAS No. 123R replaces existing require-
ments under SFAS No. 123R, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” and eliminates the ability to account for share-
based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25.
The provisions of SFAS No. 123R are effective for the Company
on July 1, 2005. The Company is currently assessing the finan-
cial statement impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R.

In December 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants issued Statement of Position 03-3, “Accounting
for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer”
(“SOP 03-3”). SOP 03-3 requires loans acquired through a
transfer, such as a business combination, where there are dif-
ferences in expected cash flows and contractual cash flows due
in part to credit quality, to be recognized at their fair value.
Under the provisions of SOP 03-3, any future excess of cash
flows over the original expected cash flows is to be recognized
as an adjustment of future yield. Future decreases in actual
cash flow compared to the original expected cash flow is rec-
ognized as a valuation allowance and expensed immediately.
Under SOP 03-3, valuation allowances cannot be created or
“carried over” in the initial accounting for impaired loans
acquired. SOP 03-3 is effective for impaired loans acquired in
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2004. The company
does not expect adoption to have material impact on the con-

solidated financial statement.

NOTE 2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND
DuUE FROM BANKS

The Federal Reserve Bank requires member banks to maintain
certain cash and due from bank reserves. The subsidiary banks’
reserve requirements totaled approximately $7,562,000 and
$14,375,000 at December 31, 2004, ahd 2003, respectively.
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Norte 3. DeBT AND EQUITY SECURITIES

The amortized cost of securities available for sale and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are

summarized below:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value
2004:
U.S. treasury $495,040 $35,859 $ - $530,899
U.S. government agencies 138,024,045 627,981 (1,017,948) 137,634,078
State and political subdivisions 112,004,478 2,391,038 (577,902) 113,817,614
Corporate bonds 75,510,784 2,471,332 (408,929) 77,573,187
Equity securities 25,571,604 8,332,080 - 33,903,684
© $351,605,951 $13,858,290 $(2,004,779) $363,459,462
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value
2003:

U.S. Treasury $2,158,571 $70,341 $ - $2,228,912
U.S. government agencies 117,321,783 1,728,234 (412,733) 118,637,284
State and political subdivisions 103,411,430 3,087,981 (536,295) 105,963,116
Corporate bonds 59,991,655 3,639,909 (45,868) 63,585,696
Equity securities 26,080,188 6,796,873 (176,155) 32,700,906
$308,963,627 $15,323,338 $(1,171,051) $323,115,914

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities available-for-sale as of December 31, 2004, are shown below by con-
tractual maturity. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or prepay

obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $20,357,537  $20,448,845

Due after one year

through five years 193,586,146 194,749,053
Due after five years

through ten years 77,349,858 79,647,967

Due after teh years 34,740,806 34,709,913

326,034,347 329,555,778

Equity securities 25,571,604 33,903,684

$351,605,951 $363,459,462
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At December 31, 2004 and 2003, securities with a carrying
value of approximately $173,765,000 and $49,758,000, respec-
tively, were pledged as collateral on public deposits, securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and for other purposes as

required or permitted by law.

Gross realized gains and gross realized losses on sales of avail-
able-for-sale securities were $443,974 and $119,944 respective-
ly, in 2004, $1,395,320 and none, respectively, in 2003,
$1,087,290 and $197,367, respectively, in 2002.

The components of other comprehensive income (loss) — net
unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, are indenti-
fied in the table at right:

Ames
National
Corporation

2004 2003 2002

Unrealized holding

gains (losses) arising

during the period $(1,974,746) $3,136,832 $6,002,497
Reclassification adjustment

for net gains realized in

net income (324,030) (1395320  (889,923)
Net unrealized

gains (losses) before

tax effect ' (2,298,776) 1,741,512 $5,112,574
Tax effect 850,547  (644,359) (1,890,400)
Other comprehensive

income net unrealized

gains (losses) on securities ${1,448,229) $1,097,153 $3,222,174

Unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a con-

tinuous unrealized loss position, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2004 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Securities available for sale:
U.S. government agencies $81,532,939 $(775,150) $9,849,426 $(242,798) $91,382,365 $(1,017,948)
State and political subsidivisions 24,844,595 (296,117) 10,701,463 (281,785) 35,546,058 (577,902)
Corporate obligations 36,136,660 (408,929) - - 36,136,660 (408,929)
Equity securities - - - - -
$142,514,194  $(1,480,196) $20,550,889 $(524,583) $163,065,083 $(2,004,779)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
2003 Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Securities available for sale:
U.S. government agencies $31,608,073 $(412,733) $ - $ - $31,608,073 $(412,733)
State and political subsidivisions 22,823,408 (507,233) 628,346 (29,062) 23,452,254 (536,29%5)
Corporate obligations 15.160,687 (45,868) - - 15,160,687 (45,868)
Equity securities ; 3,242,200 (176,155) 3,242,200 (176,155)
$69,592,168 $(965,834) $3,871,046 $(205,217) $73,463,214 $(1,171,051)

For all of the above investment securities, the unrealized losses are generally due to changes in interest rates or general market

conditions, as such, are considered to be temporary, by the Company.
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NoTtE 4. LOANS RECEIVABLE

The composition of loans receivable at December 31, 2004 and
2003 is as follows:

2004 2003
Commercial and agricultural $87,901,970  $66,369,814
Real estate 306,272,605 272,790,845
Consumer 14,244,501 13,208,113
Other 10,339,393 10,034,281
$418,758,469 $362,403,053
Less
Allowance for loan losses (6,475,530) (6,050,989)
Deferred loan fees (644,374) (818,945)

$411,638,565 $355,533,119

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the year ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Balance, beginning $6,050,989 $5,757,694 $5,445,671
Provision for loan losses 479,355 645,447 688,431
Recoveries of loans
charged-off 174,703 111,926 53,805
Loans charged-off (229,517)  (464,078) (430,213)
Balance, ending $6,475,530 $6,050,989 $5,757,694

Loans are made in the normal course of business to directors and
executive officers ¢of the Company and to their affiliates. The
terms of these loans, including interest rates and collateral, are
similar to those prevailing for comparable transactions with oth-

ers and do not involve more than a normal risk of collectibility.

Loan transactions with related parties were as follows for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003:

2004 2003
Balance, beginning of year $10,991,284 $7,791,668
New loans 17,173,833 19,425,895
Repayments (13,297,861) (16,650,452)
Change in status 13,788,737 424,173
Balance, end of year $28,655,993 $10,991,284
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At December 31, 2004, and 2003, the Company had impaired
loans of approximately $1,977,000 and $2,187,075, respective-
ly. The allowance for loan losses related to these impaired loans
was approximately $158,000 and $134,000 at December 31,
2004, and 2003, respectively. The average balances of impaired
loans for the years ended December 31, 2004, and 2003 were
$2,373,465 and $2,050,154, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 interest income which
would have been recorded under the original terms of such loans
was approximately $239,000, $179,000 and $160,000 respec-
tively, with $211,000, $177,000 and $17,000, respectively,
recorded. Loans greater than 90 days past due and still accruing
interest were approximately $80,000 and $431,000 at
December 31, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

The amount the Company will ultimately realize from these
loans could differ materially from their carrying value because
of future developments affecting the underlying collateral or
the borrowers’ ability to repay the loans. As of December 31,
2004, there were no material commitments to lend additional

funds to customers whose loans were classified as impaired.

NoTteE 5. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The major classes of bank premises and equipment and the total
accumulated depreciation as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,

are as follows:

2004 2003
Land $1,284,771 $1,284,771
Buildings and improvements 9,889,939 9,120,088
Furniture and equipment 6,041,317 5,721,259
17,216,027 $16,126,118
Less accumulated depreciation 8,425,391 7,748,311
$8,790,636 $8,377,807
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NortEe 6. DeposITS

At December 31, 2004, the maturities of time deposits are as

follows:

Years ended December 31

2005 $136,616,566
2006 45,485,074
2007 40,585,356
2008 10,609,685
2009 6,392,181
Thereafter 148,998

$239,837,860

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows:

2004 2003 2002
NOW accounts $1,237,381 $909,137  $1,155,459
Savings and money market 1,972,211 1,849,238 2,237,034
Time, $100,000 and over 1,758,187 1,807,047 1,897,855
Other time 4,974,471 5,479,756 6,106,777
$9,942,250 $10,045,178 $11,397,125

NoTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company has a stock purchase plan with the objective of
encouraging equity interests by officers, employees and direc-
tors of the Company and its subsidiaries to provide additional
incentive to improve banking performance and retain qualified
individuals. The purchase price of the shares is the fair market
value of the stock based upon current market trading activity.
The terms of the plan provide for the issuance of up to 14,000
shares of common stock per year for a 10-year period com-

mencing in 1999 and continuing through 2008.
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The Company has a qualified 401(k) profit-sharing plan. The
Company matches employee contributions up to a maximum of
2% of qualified compensation and also contributes an amount
equal to 5% of the participating employee’s compensation. In
addition, contributions can be made on a discretionary basis by

the combined Company on behalf of the employees. For the

‘years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, Company

contributions to the merged plans were approximately
$676,000, $659,000 and $607,000, respectively. The plan cov-

ered substantially all employees.

Note 8. INcOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense for the year ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Federal

Current $3,493,176 $3,752,585 $3,819,350

Deferred (48,519) (266,298)  (184,965)
Total 3,444,657 3,485,687 3,634,385
State

Current 815,664 852,953 819,039

Deferred (4,929) (17,853) (15,048)
Total $810,735 $835,100 $803,991
Income Tax Expense  $4,255,392 $4,320,787  $4,438,376
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Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% to income
before income taxes is a result of the following for the years
ended December 311, 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002

Income taxes at 35%

federal tax rate $5,825,727 $5,580,915  $5,364,695
Increase (decrease)

resulting from:

Tax-exempt interest

and dividends (1,870,264) (1,577,116)  (1,356,187)

State taxes, net of

federal tax benefit 522,929 548,897 534,831

Other (223,000) (231,909)  (104,963)
Total income

tax expense $4,255,392 $4,320,787  $4,438,376

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to signif-
icant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred liabilities
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are as follows:

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses $1,901,776 $1,741,344
Other 333,792 297,041
Total gross deferred taxiassets $2,235,568 $2,038,385

Deferred tax liabilities
$(4,385,799)
(184,439)

$(5,236,346)
(40,704)

Unrealized gain on sécurities
Other
Total gross deferred

$(4,570,238) $(5,277,050)

tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets: (liabilities)  $(2,334,670) $(3,238,665)

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, income taxes currently
payable of approximately $182,000 and $390,000, respectively,

are included in accrued interest and other liabilities.
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NoTte 9. COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES
AND CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RIsK

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance-
sheet risk in the normal course of business. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby
letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees,
elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the

balance sheet.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonper-
formance by the other party to the financial instrument for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit
is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-
balance-sheet instruments. A summary of the Company’s

commitments at December 31, 2004 and 2003 is as follows:

2004 2003
Commitments to extend credit $65,894,000 $71,100,000
Standby letters of credit 2,717,000 1,741,000
$68,611,000 $72,841,000

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a cus-
tomer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Since many of the commitments are expected to
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank
evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management’s

credit evaluation of the party.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by
the Banks to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third-
party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and
private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issu-
ing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies and is

required in instances which the Banks deem necessary. In the
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event the customer does not perform in accordance with the
terms of the agreement with the third party, the Banks would
be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential
amount of future payments the Banks could be required to
make is represented by the contractual amount shown in the
summary above. If the commitments were funded, the Banks
would be entitled to seek recovery from the customer.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, no amounts have been
recorded as liabilities for the Bank’s potential obligations under
these guarantees.

In the normal course of business, the Company is involved in
various legal proceedings. In the opinion of management, any
liability resulting from such proceedings would not have a mate-

rial adverse effect on the Company’s financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk: The Banks originate real estate,
consumer, and commercial loans, primarily in Story, Boone,
Hamilton and Marshall Counties, Iowa, and adjacent counties.
Although the Banks have diversified loan portfolios, a substantial
portion of their borrowers’ ability to repay loans is dependent

upon eccnomic conditions in the Banks' market areas.

NoTe 10. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiary banks are subject to various
regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements
can initiate certain mandatory — and possible additional discre-
tionary — actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Company's financial statements.

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework
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for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the
Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items
as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to
regulatory accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts
and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the

regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capi-
tal adequacy require the Company and each subsidiary bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table
below) of total and Tier [ capital (as defined in the regulations)
to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and of Tier I capital (as
defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003, that the Company and each
subsidiary bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which

they are subject.

As of December 31, 2004, the most recent notification from
the federal banking regulators categorized the subsidiary banks
as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as adequately capitalized
the banks must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table.
Management believes there are no conditions or events since
that notification that have changed the institution’s category.
The Company’s and each of the subsidiary bank’s actual capital
amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are also

presented in the table.
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Corporation

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004:
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets)
Consolidated $109,931 18.6% $47,274 8.0%
Boone Bank & Trust 13,047 15.0 6,966 8.0 $8,707 10.0%
First National Bank 42,473 14.6 23,196 8.0 28,995 10.0
Randall-Story State {Bank 8,262 15.7 4,220 8.0 5,275 10.0
State Bank & Trust 12,114 15.2 6,370 8.0 7,962 10.0
United Bank & Trust 7,700 12.6 4,897 8.0 6,122 10.0
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $103,456 17.5% $23,637 4.0%
Boone Bank & Trust 12,092 13.9 3,483 4.0 $5,224 6.0%
First National Bank 39,119 13.5 11,598 4.0 17,397 6.0
Randall-Story State Bank 7,602 144 2,110 4.0 3,165 6.0
State Bank & Trust 11,227 14.1 3,185 4.0 4,777 6.0
United Bank & Trust 7,065 11.5 2,449 4.0 3,673 6.0
Tier 1 capital (to average-weighted assets):
Consolidated $103,456 12.3% $33,654 4.0%
Boone Bank & Trust. 12,092 10.6 4,580 4.0 $5,726 5.0%
First National Bank 39,119 9.3 16,911 4.0 21,139 5.0
Randall-Story State Bank 7,602 105 2,892 4.0 3,614 5.0
State Bank & Trust 11,227 94 4,794 4.0 5,992 5.0
United Bank & Trust 7,065 8.2 3,458 4.0 4,322 5.0
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Corporation

To Be Well
Capitalized Under
For Capital Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2603
Total capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $104,460 20.3% $41,261 8.0%
Boone Bank & Trust 12,284 14.9 6,613 8.0 $8,267 10.0%
First National Bank 40,460 16.0 20,264 8.0 25,330 10.0
Randall-Story State Bank 7,902 15.5 4,069 8.0 5,087 10.0
State Bank & Trust 11,509 18.2 5,048 8.0 6,310 10.0
United Bank & Trust 5,491 12.0 3,653 8.0 4,566 10.0
Tier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets):
Consolidated $98,409 19.1% $20,630 4.0%
Boone Bank & Trust 11,333 13.7 3,307 4.0 $4,960 6.0%
First National Bank 37,354 14.7 10,132 4.0 15,198 6.0
Randall-Story State Bank 7,266 14.3 2,035 4.0 3,052 6.0
State Bank & Trust 10,719 17.0 2,524 4.0 3,786 6.0
United Bank & Trust 5,011 11.0 1,826 4.0 2,740 6.0
Tier 1 capital (to average-weighted assets):
Consolidated $98,409 13.0% $30,330 4.0%
Boone Bank & Trust 11,333 10.2 4,442 4.0 $5,553 5.0%
First National Bank 37,354 9.8 15,179 4.0 18,974 5.0
Randall-Story State Bank 7,266 10.2 2,840 4.0 3,551 5.0
State Bank & Trust 10,719 9.9 4,343 4.0 5,429 5.0
United Bank & Trust 5,011 7.3 2,741 4.0 3,426 5.0

NoTE 11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments (as described in Note 1) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003

were as follows:

2004 2003
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $18,759,086 $18,759,086 $31,982,144 $31,982,144
Federal funds sold 19,865,000 19,865,000 20,380,000 20,380,000
Interest-bearing deposits 9,575,174 9,575,174 6,363,538 6,363,538
Securities available-for-sale 363,459,462 363,459,462 323,115,914 323,115,914
Loans, net 411,638,565 413,071,863 355,533,119 358,891,066
Loans held for sale i 234,469 234,469 859,139 859,139
Accrued income receivable 6,262,424 6,262,424 5,842,247 5,842,247
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits $658,175,839 $659,865,147 $619,548,527 $623,208,058
Other borrowings 64,072,475 64,072,475 18,198,403 18,198,403
Accrued interest 1,302,021 1,302,021 1,361,819 1,361,819
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Note 12. Ames NATIONAL CORPORATION (PARENT
ComPANY ONLY) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Information relative to the Parent Company’s balance sheets at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, and statements of income and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, is as follows:

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $6,983 $1,213
Interest-bearing deposits in banks 2,718,126 1,588,995
Securities available-for-sale 32,177,363 33,654,060
Investment in bank subsidiaries 79,151,605 76,105,383
Loans receivable, net 1,077,000 -
Bank premises and equipment, net 439,059 475,551
Accrued income receivable 160,537 151,335
Other assets 142,938 7,198
Total assets $115,873,611 $111,983,735
LIABILITIES
Dividends payable $1,537,162 $1,441,204
Deferred income taxes 3,074,468 2,528,955
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 338,041 688,581
Total liabilities 4,949,671 $4,658,740
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock $15,766,150 $15,766,150
Additional paid-in capital 25,378,746 25,351,979
Retained earnings 63,200,352 58,400,660
Treasury stock, at cost (889,020) (1,109,735)
Accumulated other
comprehensive income 7,467,712 8,915,941
Total stockholders’ equity 110,923,940 $107,324,995

Total liabilities and

stockholder’s equity $115,873,611 $111,983,735

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Operating income
Equity in net income
of bank subsidiaries
Interest
Dividends
Rents
Securities gains, net

Provision for loan losses
Operating income
after provision for

loan losses

Operating expenses

Income before
income taxes

Income tax expense

(beriefit)

Net income
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2004 2003 2002
$11,857,299  $10,440,180  $10,108,107
473,375 542,640 745,488
1,063,202 962,049 979,071
70,425 140,147 150,894
308,273 1,207,735 881,938
13,772,574 13,292,751 12,865,498
16,000 (16,000) -
13,756,574 13308751 12,865,498
1,517,028 1,379,066 1,320,360
12,239,546 11,929,685 11,545,138
(150,000) 305,000 205,000
$12,389,546  $11,624,685 $11,340,138
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STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Provision for loan losses
Amoritization and accretion, net
Provision for deferred taxes
Securities gains, net
Equity in net income of bank subsidiaries
Dividends received from bank subsidiaries
(Increase) decrease in accrued income receivable
(Increase) decrease in other assets
Increase {decrease) in accrued expense payable
and other Labilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sale of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls of securities
available-for-sale

(Increase) decrease in interest bearing deposits in banks

(Increase) decrease in loans

Purchase of bank premises and equipment
Investment in bank subsidiaries

Net cash (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Beginning
Ending

Ames
National
Corporation

2004 2003 2002
$12,389,546 $11,624,685 $11,340,138
66,473 77,132 80,620

16,000 (16,000) -

(6,004) (8,014) (16,060)
- (36,385) (56,023)
(308,273) (1,207,735) (881,938)
(11,857,299) (10,440,180) (10,108,107)
8,384,000 7,868,000 5,978,000
(9,202) 61,798 1,446,277
(135,740) 148,587 (130,281)
(350,540) 336,997 246,165
8,188,961 8,408,885 7,898,791
(1,454,604) (7,292,720) (7,334,938)
4,200,716 4,067,605 8,611,304
519,223 2,170,435 2,196,163
(1,129,131) (192,339) 769,809
(1,093,000) 722,968 (448,741)
(29,981) (34,976) (95,226)
(1,950,000) (1,000,000) (5,000,000)
(936,777) (1,559,027) (1,301,629)
(7,493,896) 7,077,117) (6,755,449)
247,482 221,870 158,151
(7,246,414) (6,855,247) (6,597,298)
5,770 (5,389) (136)

1,213 6,602 6,738
$6,983 $1,213 $6,602
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Note 13. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL

DAta (UNAUDITED)

Total interest income
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net income

Basic earnings per common share

Total interest income
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net income

Basic earnings per comimon share

2004
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$8,914,804 $9,109,031 $9,323,847 $10,005,977
2,391,174 2,451,952 2,662,249 3,057,952
6,523,630 6,657,079 6,661,598 6,948,025
58,355 210,353 (63,820) 274,467
2,964,542 2,862,039 3,372,387 3,190,578
0.95 091 1.08 1.01
2003
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$8,714,233 $8,876,124 $8,818,046 $8,905,337
2,690,209 2,723,323 2,467,155 2,458,095
6,024,024 6,152,801 6,350,891 6,447,242
119,745 305,995 87,000 132,707
2,870,325 2,649,229 3,240,642 2,864,489
0.92 0.85 1.03 091
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ComMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION
Ames National Corporation

PO. Box 846

405 Fifth Street

Ames, 1A 50010

Telephone (515) 232-6251

Fax (515) 663-3033

Email info@amesnational.com

Website www.amesnational.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Des Moines, lowa

COUNSEL
Nyemaster, Goode, West, Hansell & O’Brien, PC.

Des Moines, lowa

ANNUAL MEETING

The Board of Directors of Ames National Corporation has estab-
lished Wednesday, April 27, 2005, at 4:30 p.m. as the date of the
Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Registration will begin at 4:00
p.m. We invite all shareholders to attend the meeting, which will be
held at Reiman Gardens, 1407 Elwood Drive, Ames, lowa.

MARKET MAKERS

Ames National Corporation’s common stock is listed on the NAS-
DAQ SmallCap Market under the symbol “ATLO.” Market makers
and brokers in the stock include:

US Bancorp Piper Jaffray
{515) 233-4064

Monroe Securities, Inc.

(800) 766-5560

FTN Financial Group
(800) 456-5460

Howe Barnes Investments, Inc.

(800) 800-4693

Form 10-K AND OTHER INFORMATION

The Company submits an annual report to the Securities and
Exchange Commission on Form 10-K. Shareholders many obtain
written copies of Form 10-K without charge by writing to Ames
National Corporation, PO. Box 846, 405 Fifth Street, Ames, lowa
50010, attention John P. Nelson, Vice President. This form is also

available at www.amesnational.com.
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National
Corporation

MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

On February 28, 2005, the Company had approximately 602 share-
holders of record. The Company’s common stock is listed on the
NASDAQ SmallCap Market under the symbol “ATLO.” Trading in
the Company's common stock is, however, relatively limited. Based
on information provided to and gathered by the Company on an
informal basis, the Company believes that the high and low sales
price for the common stock on a per share basis during the last two

years is as follows:

2004 2003
Sales Price Sales Price
Quarter  High Low Quarter High Low
st $61.00 $58.25 Ist $48.90  $46.05
2nd 63.50 60.00 2nd 55.25 51.50
3rd 71.50 62.25 3rd 57.25 53.10
4th 105.00 70.50 4th 598.75 56.75

The Company declared aggregate annual cash dividends in 2004 and
2003 of $7,590,000 and $7,142,000, respectively, or $2.42 per share
in 2004 and $2.28 per share in 2003. In February 2003, the Company
declared an aggregate cash dividend of $2,353,000 or $.75 per share.

Quarterly dividends declared during the last two years were as follows:

2004 2003
Quarter Cash dividends Cash dividends
declared per share declared per share
Ist $0.46 $0.44
2nd 0.98 0.92
3rd 0.49 0.46
4th 0.49 0.46

The decision to declare any such cash dividends in the future and
the amount thereof rests within the discretion of the Board of
Directors of the Company and will be subject to, among other
things, the future earnings, capital requirements and financial con-
dition of the Company and certain regulatory restrictions imposed
on the payment of dividends by the Banks. Such restrictions are dis-
cussed in greater detail in Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and

Capital Resources.
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